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Council Report 
31 December 2007 

The members of the Council present their report on the consolidated entity consisting of 
The University of New South Wales and the entities it controlled at the end of, or during 
the year ended 31 December 2007.

Members

The following persons were the Council members of The University of New South Wales 
during the year and up to the date of this report: 

Official Council Members 

Mr David Michael Gonski, AC was a member from the beginning of the year and 
continues in office at the date of this report.  

Professor Frederick George Hilmer, AO was a member from the beginning of the year 
and continues in office at the date of this report.  

Professor Anthony Haynes Dooley was a member from the beginning of the year and 
continues in office at the date of this report. 

Ministerial Appointments 

Mr Paul Ronald Pearce, MP was a member from the beginning of the year and continues 
in office at the date of this report.  

The Honourable Susan Maree Ryan, AO was a member from the beginning of the year 
and continues in office at the date of this report.  

Mr Matthew Grounds was a member from the beginning of the year and continues in 
office at the date of this report.  

Mr Wallace King, AO was a member from the beginning of the year and continues in 
office at the date of this report.  

Ms Jillian Shirley Segal, AM was a member from the beginning of the year and continues 
in office at the date of this report.  

Mr. Warwick Negus was appointed as a member on 1 July 2007 and continues in office 
at the date of this report. 

Elected Council Members 

Mr Geoffrey Francis Lawson, OAM was a member from the beginning of the year and 
continues in office at the date of this report.  

Ms Gabrielle Cecelia Upton was a member from the beginning of the year and continues 
in office at the date of this report.  

Mr Darren George Challis was a member from the beginning of the year and continues in 
office at the date of this report.  

Dr. Christine Lynette Clifton was a member from the beginning of the year and continues 
in office at the date of this report.  

Scientia Professor Mark Andrew Bradford was a member from the beginning of the year 
and continues in office at the date of this report.  

Professor Wai Fong Chua was a member from the beginning of the year and continues in 
office at the date of this report. 

Scientia Professor Brien Anthony Holden, OAM was a member from the beginning of the 
year and continues in office at the date of this report. 

Professor Joseph Albert Wolfe was a member from the beginning of the year and 
continues in office at the date of this report. 

Miss Jennifer Melanie Till was a member from the beginning of the year and continues in 
office at the date of this report.  

Ms Kirstin Anne Hunter was a member from the beginning of the year and continues in 
office at the date of this report. 

Ms Angela Mary Barrett was a member from the beginning of the year and continues in 
office at the date of this report. 

Council Appointed Members 

Mr Brian Edward Suttor was as a member from the beginning of the year and continues 
in office at the date of this report. 

Mr Terry Davis was a member from the beginning of the year and continues in office at 
the date of this report. 

Former Members of the Council 

Mr Peter Edward Mason, AM was a member from the beginning of the year until 30 June 
2007.
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 The provision of courses of study or instruction across a range of fields, and the 
carrying out of research, to meet the needs of the community, 

 The participation in public discourse, 
 The conferring of degrees, including those of Bachelor, Master and Doctor, and the 

carrying out of research, to meet the needs of the community, 
 The provision of teaching and learning that engage with advanced knowledge and 

inquiry,
 The development of governance, procedural rules, admission policies, financial 

arrangements and quality assurance processes that are underpinned by the values 
and goals of the University’s core activities, and that are sufficient to ensure the 
integrity of the University’s academic programs. 

There are no significant changes in the nature of the activities of the consolidated entity 
during the year. 

Review of Operations 

The consolidated group reports an operating loss after tax of $6.5m.  These results 
incorporate an operating loss of $11.2m for the University. 

The University’s operating loss of $11.2m in 2007 compares to a $10.7m operating 
surplus in 2006.  Revenue (before deferred government superannuation contributions) 
increased by $90.7m over 2006 as a result of increases in revenue from teaching and 
increased investment income. 

University entity costs (before deferred employee benefits for superannuation) have 
increased by $112.6m over 2006.  This was principally a result of the closure costs of 
UNSW Asia ($47.6m) following the decision by the University to close its Singapore 
campus.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs 

On 23 May 2007, the University announced the closure of its Singapore campus and 
cessation of its principal business. On 24 December 2007 UNSW Asia was placed in 
liquidation.

Matters Subsequent to the End of the Financial Year 

The value of the Group's and the parent entity’s available-for-sale financial assets has 
decreased by $24.0m (6.70%) and $18.0m (6.20% ) respectively as at 29 February 2008 
since the balance sheet date, as a result of the global credit market uncertainties; no 
adjustments have been made to the carrying value as at 31 December 2007 in regard to 
this decrease. 

On 1 January 2008 UNSW exchanged contracts on the sale of the property at 1408 
Anzac Parade, Little Bay for $103.0m. It is expected that the contract will be settled 
within six months from the contract exchange date and any financial impact of this sale 
will be recorded in the year ending 31 December 2008. 

The University intends to relocate the sports field at Little Bay to another location as a 
result of the sale.

Meetings of Members 

The numbers of meetings of the members of The University of New South Wales Council 
and of each committee held during the year ended 31 December 2007, and the numbers 
of meetings attended by each member were: 

Meetings of committees 

Council 
Meetings  Audit Finance

Nominations & 
Remuneration 

Risk
Management 

A B A B A B A B A B
Mr David Gonski, AC 9 9 - - 3 3 1 1 - -
Professor Fred Hilmer, AO 8 9 - - 3 3 1 1 - -
Professor Anthony Dooley 9 9 - - 2 3 - 1 - -
Mr Peter Mason, AM 3 6 - - 1 1 1 1 - -
Mr Paul Pearce, MP 8 9 - - - 3 - - - -
The Honourable Susan 
Ryan, AO 

8 9 - - - - - - 5 5

Mr Matthew Grounds 7 9 - - 1 3 - - - -
Mr Wallace King, AO 5 9 - - - 1 - -
Ms Jillian Segal, AM 8 9 5 5 - - - - 5 5
Mr Geoffrey Lawson, 
OAM

6 9 - - - - - - - -

Ms Gabrielle Upton 9 9 5 5 3 3 1 1 - -
Mr Darren Challis 7 9 - - 3 3 - - - -
Dr. Christina Clifton 8 9 - - - - - - - -
Scientia Professor Mark 
Bradford

7 9 - - - - - - - -

Professor Wai Fong Chua 7 9 - - 2 3 - - - -
Scientia Professor Brien 
Holden, OAM 

7 9 - - - - - - - -

Professor Joseph Wolfe 9 9 - - - - - - - -
Miss Jennifer Till 9 9 - - - - - - - -
Ms Kirstin Hunter 9 9 - - - - - - 3 4
Ms Angela Barrett 9 9 - - - - - - - -
Mr Brian Suttor 7 9 5 5 - - - - - -
Mr Terry Davis 6 9 - - - - - - - -
Mr Warwick Negus 1 2 - - 1 2 - - - -
External Committee Members 
Mr Greg Coutas * - - 5 5 - - - - - -
Dr Dale Cooper * - - - - - - - - 3 5
Dr Ron Cameron * - - - - - - - - 3 5

A = Number of meetings attended, B = Number of meetings held during the time the member held 
office or was a member of the committee during the year 
* Not a member of Council 

Principal Activities 

During the year, the principal continuing activities of the consolidated entity consisted of: 
 The provision of education and research facilities of University standard; 
 The encouragement of the dissemination, advancement, development and 

application, development and application of knowledge informed by free inquiry, 

Council report 04 / 05



Likely Developments and Expected Results of Operations 

The likely developments in the operations and the expected results of those operations of 
the consolidated entity constituted by the University and the entities it controls from time 
to time are included in this report. 

Environmental regulations 

The primary environmental legislation impacting UNSW is the Protection of the 
Environment Operations (POEO) Act 1997 and the POEO Amendment Act 2005. Under 
this legislation, UNSW’s laboratory activities have been recognised to represent the most 
significant source of environmental risk and are therefore being managed accordingly. 

Insurance of officers 

The University obtains commercial insurance to indemnify persons who serve on 
University Boards and Committees and on Boards and Committees of all entities in the 
group.  Coverage also extends to University appointees who serve on the Boards of 
other entities, as designated representatives of the University and who are not otherwise 
indemnified. This insurance provides funds to defend each officer and Board appointee 
of the University against claims from third parties which result from actual or alleged 
wrong acts, as permitted by law.

The University has in place commercial Directors’ and Officers’ insurance on a worldwide 
basis in favour of such responsible persons, executive officers and individuals appointed 
to represent the University on Boards and Committees. The premium for this commercial 
insurance is paid for by University, and the University self-insures all claims expenses 
which fall below the commercial policy deductible or for liabilities which in respect of such 
insurance are prohibited by contract of insurance.   

Proceedings on behalf of the University of New South Wales 

There are no material proceedings against or on behalf of The University of New South 
Wales or its controlled entities. 

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the members of The University of 
New South Wales.

Mr David Gonski, AC 
Chancellor
Sydney
21 April 2008 

Council report Statement by members of council 06 / 07



Independent auditor’s report 08 / 09



E%7,>#ÿ)*3*#>#%*
6,(ÿ*"#ÿ+#3(ÿ#%:#:ÿ;<ÿ=#7#>?#(ÿ@AAB ÿ

ÿ
C,%),4&:3*#:

ÿ
F3(#%*

ÿ
ÿ ÿ

@AAB
ÿ

@AA=
ÿ

@AAB
ÿ

@AA=
ÿ

>,-$0
ÿ

GHAAA
ÿ

BCAAA
ÿ

GHAAA
ÿ

BCAAA
ÿ

8#'#%1#ÿ-(,>ÿ7,%*&%1&%Iÿ,9#(3*&,%)
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

D80-*")&"'ÿE,F$*'/$'-ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"00&0-"'($
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

D80-*")&"'ÿE,F$*'/$'-ÿE*"'-0
ÿ

@G6H
ÿ

;JBK@LJ
ÿ

1?AI@J=
ÿ

;JBK@LJ
ÿ

1?AI@J=
ÿ

KL;5MKLN!ÿMÿD80-*")&"'ÿE,F$*'/$'-
ÿ

+"9/$'-0
ÿ

@G6H
ÿ

BMKA<N
ÿ

==I41?
ÿ

BMKA<N
ÿ

==I41?
ÿ

%LLMKLN!
ÿ

@G6H
ÿ

@AK;BN
ÿ

@AI@??
ÿ

@AK;BN
ÿ

@AI@??
ÿ

5-"-$IÿN,(")ÿ"'Oÿ%,*$&#'ÿE,F$*'/$'-ÿ6&'"'(&")
ÿ

"00&0-"'($
ÿ

1
ÿ

<;KJBN
ÿ

@4I?P@
ÿ

<;KJ@O
ÿ

JAI@:1
ÿ

KL;5MKLN!ÿMÿ5-8O$'-ÿ+"9/$'-0
ÿ ÿ

@MKO<@
ÿ

@4I@@@
ÿ

@MKO<@
ÿ

@4I@@@
ÿ

%$$0ÿ"'Oÿ(3"*#$0
ÿ

4
ÿ

;ALKJ<A
ÿ

@P:IA?=
ÿ

@;JKBNO
ÿ

@AQI@::
ÿ

.'F$0-/$'-ÿ&'(,/$
ÿ

:
ÿ

M;K@ML
ÿ

:=IQ=:
ÿ

MOKN@;
ÿ

4?IA?=
ÿ

R,9")-&$0Iÿ-*"O$/"*S0ÿ"'Oÿ)&($'($0
ÿ

=
ÿ

JK@L@
ÿ

1I==:
ÿ

@KNL@
ÿ

JIPQA
ÿ

;,'08)-"'(9ÿ"'Oÿ(,'-*"(-0
ÿ

?
ÿ

MJK;@;
ÿ

=JI1J?
ÿ

OJKOLB
ÿ

4QI:PQ
ÿ

T-3$*ÿ*$F$'8$
ÿ

P
ÿ

@BKANL
ÿ

@=IJ11
ÿ

@;K;BJ
ÿ

@=I:A?
ÿ

U,-")ÿ*$F$'8$ÿ6*,/ÿ(,'-&'8&'#ÿ,+$*"-&,'0
ÿ ÿ

<KAAAKJ<O
ÿ

Q1QIAQA
ÿ

L<@KMOJ
ÿ

P@:I?@@
ÿ

E"&'0ÿ,'ÿO&0+,0")ÿ,6ÿ"00$-0
ÿ ÿ

;JM
ÿ

:@
ÿ

@BO
ÿ

4J
ÿ

53"*$ÿ,6ÿ'$-ÿ*$08)-0ÿ,6ÿ"00,(&"-$0ÿ"((,8'-$O
ÿ

6,*ÿ80&'#ÿ-3$ÿ$78&-9ÿ/$-3,O
ÿ

4AG(H
ÿ

OB
ÿ

GQ4AH
ÿ

D
ÿ

M
ÿ

T-3$*ÿ&'(,/$
ÿ

P
ÿ

LK@MA
ÿ

QIJ@?
ÿ

JKNLN
ÿ

:IAJ4
ÿ

U,-")ÿ&'(,/$ÿ6*,/ÿ(,'-&'8&'#ÿ,+$*"-&,'0ÿV$6,*$
ÿ

W$6$**$OÿE,F$*'/$'-ÿ58+$*"''8"-&,'
ÿ

;,'-*&V8-&,'0
ÿ

ÿ

<KA<AKO<J
ÿ

Q4?I1@Q
ÿ

L@<KN@B
ÿ

P1AI???
ÿ

W$6$**$OÿE,F$*'/$'-ÿ58+$*"''8"-&,'
ÿ

;,'-*&V8-&,'0
ÿ

4:GOH
ÿ

POAKMMLQ
ÿ

GQAI1=QH
ÿ

POAKMMLQ
ÿ

GQAI1=QH
ÿ

U,-")ÿ*$F$'8$ÿ"'Oÿ&'(,/$ÿ6*,/ÿ(,'-&'8&'#
ÿ

,+$*"-&,'0
ÿ

ÿ

LOLKJNL
ÿ

P:=IQ=A
ÿ

JBAKBOJ
ÿ

?4AI4AP
ÿ

RS9#%)#)ÿ-(,>ÿ7,%*&%1&%Iÿ,9#(3*&,%)
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

L/+),9$$ÿ*$)"-$Oÿ$X+$'0$0
ÿ

JA
ÿ

OOMK;JA
ÿ

::4I::1
ÿ

O<OKMMJ
ÿ

:AAI4AP
ÿ

W$+*$(&"-&,'ÿ"'Oÿ"/,*-&0"-&,'
ÿ

JJ
ÿ

NOK@<O
ÿ

4=IAPJ
ÿ

N;KN;L
ÿ

41IAP@
ÿ

R$+"&*0ÿ"'Oÿ/"&'-$'"'($
ÿ

J@
ÿ

@NKNM;
ÿ

JPI@1=
ÿ

@@KL<M
ÿ

J:IPPJ
ÿ

%&'"'($ÿ(,0-0
ÿ

J1
ÿ

@KOAJ
ÿ

=::
ÿ

;K<AN
ÿ

JPJ
ÿ

./+"&*/$'-ÿ,6ÿ"00$-0
ÿ

J4
ÿ

@K<B@
ÿ

QJ@
ÿ

<KMM;
ÿ

GJI4A?H
ÿ

N,00$0ÿ,'ÿO&0+,0")ÿ,6ÿ"00$-0
ÿ ÿ

@KBOL
ÿ

Q:A
ÿ

@KBBA
ÿ

4A?
ÿ

T-3$*ÿ$X+$'0$0
ÿ

J:
ÿ

;;MK@LO
ÿ

1JAIJP:
ÿ

;N;KALA
ÿ

@=JI:J4
ÿ

U,-")ÿ$X+$'0$0ÿ6*,/ÿ(,'-&'8&'#ÿ,+$*"-&,'0
ÿ

V$6,*$ÿW$6$**$OÿL/+),9$$ÿ2$'$6&-0ÿ6,*
ÿ

58+$*"''8"-&,'
ÿ

ÿ

LMLKBL@
ÿ

Q1JI:?@
ÿ

L;@KMOA
ÿ

P@AIA==
ÿ

W$6$**$OÿL/+),9/$'-ÿ2$'$6&-0ÿ6,*
ÿ

58+$*"''8"-&,'
ÿ

JA
ÿ

POAKMMLQ
ÿ

GQAI1=QH
ÿ

POAKMMLQ
ÿ

GQAI1=QH
ÿ

U,-")ÿ$X+$'0$0ÿ6*,/ÿ(,'-&'8&'#ÿ,+$*"-&,'0
ÿ ÿ

L<LK<@;
ÿ

P4JI@A1
ÿ

JJ<KLJ<
ÿ

?@QI=Q?
ÿ

T9#(3*&%Iÿ(#)14*ÿ?#-,(#ÿ&%7,>#ÿ*3S
ÿ ÿ

NAKB@M
ÿ

J:I?:?
ÿ

P<<K@@;Q
ÿ

JAI?JJ
ÿ

.'(,/$ÿ-"XÿV$'$6&-YG$X+$'0$0H
ÿ

J=G"H
ÿ

P<B@Q
ÿ

1Q
ÿ

D
ÿ

M
ÿ

T+$*"-&'#ÿ*$08)-ÿ6*,/ÿ(,'-&'8&'#ÿ,+$*"-&,'0
ÿ ÿ

NAKOON
ÿ

J:I?Q=
ÿ

P<<K@@;Q
ÿ

JAI?JJ
ÿ

T+$*"-&'#ÿ*$08)-ÿ6*,/ÿO&0(,'-&'8$Oÿ,+$*"-&,'0
ÿ

J?GVH
ÿ

PNBKA;MQ
ÿ

M
ÿ

D
ÿ

M
ÿ

T9#(3*&%Iÿ(#)14*ÿ3-*#(ÿ&%7,>#ÿ*3Sÿ-,(ÿ*"#
ÿ

+#3(
ÿ ÿ

PMKNJ@Q
ÿ

J:I?Q=
ÿ

P<<K@@;Q
ÿ

JAI?JJ
ÿ

T9#(3*&%Iÿ(#)14*ÿ3**(&?1*3?4#ÿ*,ÿ>#>?#()ÿ,-
ÿ

!"#ÿ$%&'#()&*+ ,-ÿ.#/ÿ0,1*"ÿ234#)
ÿ11GVH

ÿ
PMKNJ@Q

ÿ
J:I?Q=

ÿ
P<<K@@;Q

ÿ
JAI?JJ

ÿ

!"#ÿ$%&'#ÿ()*&+#ÿ,-$-#+#)-ÿ,"&./0ÿ%#ÿ1#$0ÿ()ÿ*&)2.)*-(&)ÿ3(-"ÿ-"#ÿ$**&+4$)5()6ÿ)&-#,7
ÿ

ÿ
ÿ

2007 financial report 10 / 11

2007 financial report  
for the year ended 31 December 2007

Income statement



U343%7#ÿ)"##*
5)ÿ3*ÿ;<ÿ=#7#>?#(ÿ@AAB ÿ

ÿ
C,%),4&:3*#:

ÿ
F3(#%*

ÿ
ÿ ÿ

@AAB
ÿ

@AA=
ÿ

@AAB
ÿ

@AA=
ÿ

>,-$0
ÿ

GHAAA
ÿ

BCAAA
ÿ

GHAAA
ÿ

BCAAA
ÿ

500R!0
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

C1((#%*ÿ3))#*)
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

;"03ÿ"'Oÿ("03ÿ$78&F")$'-0
ÿ

JP
ÿ

N<KMOL
ÿ

:4I:1Q
ÿ

<LKA;O
ÿ

J1I4QA
ÿ

R$($&F"V)$0
ÿ

JQ
ÿ

OLK;<<
ÿ

=QI1=A
ÿ

O@KOAJ
ÿ

==I4=J
ÿ

.'F$'-,*&$0
ÿ

@A
ÿ

<KONJ
ÿ

JI41A
ÿ

D
ÿ

M
ÿ

DF"&)"V)$M6,*M0")$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-0
ÿ

@@
ÿ

N;M
ÿ

@IJ4Q
ÿ

N;M
ÿ

@IJ4Q
ÿ

>,'M(8**$'-ÿ"00$-0ÿ()"00&6&$Oÿ"0ÿ3$)Oÿ6,*ÿ0")$
ÿ

@J
ÿ

L@K<JO
ÿ

M
ÿ

L@K<JO
ÿ

M
ÿ

!,*34ÿ71((#%*ÿ3))#*)
ÿ ÿ

<LOK<;L
ÿ

J@?I4?P
ÿ

<MNK<MN
ÿ

P@IJAA
ÿ

.,%D71((#%*ÿ3))#*)
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

R$($&F"V)$0
ÿ

JQ
ÿ

;@AKBOA
ÿ

1?4I@AQ
ÿ

;@AKL;M
ÿ

1?4I11A
ÿ

.'F$0-/$'-0ÿ"((,8'-$Oÿ6,*ÿ80&'#ÿ-3$ÿ$78&-9
ÿ

/$-3,O
ÿ

4A
ÿ

@<O
ÿ

J:P
ÿ

D
ÿ

M
ÿ

DF"&)"V)$M6,*M0")$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-0
ÿ

@@
ÿ

;OLK<OO
ÿ

14:IJ@P
ÿ

@LAKNOB
ÿ

@PAIPJA
ÿ

T-3$*ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-0
ÿ

@1
ÿ

;KJMN
ÿ

1I@?@
ÿ

@KJON
ÿ

1I@?@
ÿ

!*,+$*-9Iÿ+)"'-ÿ"'Oÿ$78&+/$'-
ÿ

@4
ÿ

<K@ONKM;J
ÿ

JIAQQI=P4
ÿ

<K@NBKNMJ
ÿ

JIAPAIA:1
ÿ

.'-"'#&V)$ÿ"00$-0
ÿ

@=
ÿ

@K@<N
ÿ

@I:?J
ÿ

<N<
ÿ

41@
ÿ

!,*34ÿ%,%D71((#%*ÿ3))#*)
ÿ ÿ

<KLNAKJ;M
ÿ

JIP@:IA@@
ÿ

<KJM<KJOM
ÿ

JI?1PIPQ?
ÿ

!,*34ÿ3))#*)
ÿ ÿ

@K<;OKLBO
ÿ

JIQ:@I:AA
ÿ

@KA@MKA@A
ÿ

JIP@AIQQ?
ÿ

VE5UEVE!ER0
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

C1((#%*ÿ4&3?&4&*&#)
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

U*"O$ÿ"'Oÿ,-3$*ÿ+"9"V)$0
ÿ

@?
ÿ

NLK;B<
ÿ

::IPP?
ÿ

NNKNNJ
ÿ

4JIJP1
ÿ

2,**,<&'#0
ÿ

@P
ÿ

<;KMLA
ÿ

M
ÿ

@;K@NM
ÿ

M
ÿ

!*,F&0&,'0
ÿ

@Q
ÿ

<N;KMB<
ÿ

J11I:=Q
ÿ

<;LKM;N
ÿ

J@QI@PJ
ÿ

;8**$'-ÿ-"Xÿ)&"V&)&-&$0
ÿ

1A
ÿ

JO
ÿ

JP?
ÿ

D
ÿ

M
ÿ

T-3$*ÿ)&"V&)&-&$0
ÿ

1J
ÿ

JAK<;N
ÿ

?=IA4?
ÿ

MLK@@O
ÿ

?@I1=A
ÿ

!,*34ÿ71((#%*ÿ4&3?&4&*&#)
ÿ ÿ

@JMKLO<
ÿ

@=:I=QA
ÿ

@BMKOO;
ÿ

@4@IP@4
ÿ

.,%D71((#%*ÿ4&3?&4&*&#)
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

2,**,<&'#0
ÿ

@P
ÿ

OMK;;L
ÿ

J?I:@A
ÿ

OMK;;L
ÿ

QIJPJ
ÿ

!*,F&0&,'0
ÿ

@Q
ÿ

;JOK<OO
ÿ

41?I?1=
ÿ

;J;KMAL
ÿ

41=IQ41
ÿ

T-3$*ÿ)&"V&)&-&$0
ÿ

1J
ÿ

BKO;J
ÿ

@4?
ÿ

BKO;J
ÿ

M
ÿ

!,*34ÿ%,%D71((#%*ÿ4&3?&4&*&#)
ÿ ÿ

NNLKA;@
ÿ

4::I:A1
ÿ

NNBKNJM
ÿ

44=IJ@4
ÿ

!,*34ÿ4&3?&4&*&#)
ÿ ÿ

B;OKLJ;
ÿ

?@JIJQ1
ÿ

B@NKA;L
ÿ

=PPIQ4P
ÿ

.#*ÿ3))#*)
ÿ ÿ

<K;LLKLL@
ÿ

JI@1JI1A?
ÿ

<K;A<KLJ<
ÿ

JIJ1@IA4Q
ÿ

RW$E!X
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

!"*$'-ÿ$'-&-9ÿ&'-$*$0-
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

5-"-8-,*9ÿ68'O0
ÿ

1@
ÿ

ONK@LB
ÿ

41I=PP
ÿ

ONK@LB
ÿ

41I=PP
ÿ

R$0$*F$0
ÿ

11G"H
ÿ

NABK@AO
ÿ

@1@IAPA
ÿ

NALKLOL
ÿ

@@PIPA4
ÿ

R$-"&'$Oÿ08*+)80
ÿ

11GVH
ÿ

L;JKNLA
ÿ

Q::I:1Q
ÿ

J;BKB@O
ÿ

P:QI::?
ÿ

!"*$'-ÿ$'-&-9ÿ&'-$*$0-
ÿ ÿ

<K;LLKLL@
ÿ

JI@1JI1A?
ÿ

<K;A<KLJ<
ÿ

JIJ1@IA4Q
ÿ

Z&',*&-9ÿ&'-$*$0-
ÿ

14
ÿ

D
ÿ

M
ÿ

D
ÿ

M
ÿ

!,*34ÿ#Y1&*+
ÿ ÿ

<K;LLKLL@
ÿ

JI@1JI1A?
ÿ

<K;A<KLJ<
ÿ

JIJ1@IA4Q
ÿ

!"#ÿ$%&'#ÿ%$/$)*#ÿ,"##-ÿ,"&./0ÿ%#ÿ1#$0ÿ()ÿ*&)2.)*-(&)ÿ3(-"ÿ-"#ÿ$**&+4$)5()6ÿ)&-#,7
ÿ

ÿ
ÿ

0*3*#>#%*ÿ,-ÿ7"3%I#)ÿ&%ÿ#Y1&*+
6,(ÿ*"#ÿ+#3(ÿ#%:#:ÿ;<ÿ=#7#>?#(ÿ@AAB ÿ

ÿ
C,%),4&:3*#:

ÿ
F3(#%*

ÿ
ÿ ÿ

@AAB
ÿ

@AA=
ÿ

@AAB
ÿ

@AA=
ÿ

ÿ>,-$0
ÿ

GHAAA
ÿ

BCAAA
ÿ

GHAAA
ÿ

BCAAA
ÿ

!,*34ÿ#Y1&*+ 3*ÿ*"#ÿ?#I&%%&%Iÿ,-ÿ*"#ÿ-&%3%7&34
ÿ

+#3(
ÿ ÿ

<K@;<K;AB
ÿ

JI@1@I@1?
ÿ

<K<;@KANL
ÿ

JIJ1@I=@@
ÿ

E"&'ÿ,'ÿ*$F")8"-&,'ÿ,6ÿ+*,+$*-9Iÿ+)"'-ÿ"'O
ÿ

$78&+/$'-Iÿ'$-ÿ,6ÿ-"X
ÿ

11G"H
ÿ

@<<K@JB
ÿ

M
ÿ

@<<K@JB
ÿ

M
ÿ

%"&*ÿF")8$ÿ#"&'ÿ,'ÿ&'-"'#&V)$ÿ"00$-
ÿ

11G"H
ÿ

N@O
ÿ

M
ÿ

N@O
ÿ

M
ÿ

E"&'YG),00Hÿ,'ÿ*$F")8"-&,'ÿ,6ÿ"F"&)"V)$M6,*M0")$
ÿ

6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-0Iÿ'$-ÿ,6ÿ-"X
ÿ

11G"H
ÿ

P;MK;;LQ
ÿ

:I?Q@
ÿ

P;AKOOBQ
ÿ

:IJ11
ÿ

U*"'06$**$Oÿ-,ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-
ÿ

11G"H
ÿ

P<@JQ
ÿ

GJ=I?1QH
ÿ

D
ÿ

GJ=I4J?H
ÿ

LX(3"'#$ÿO&66$*$'($0ÿ,'ÿ-*"'0)"-&,'ÿ,6ÿ6,*$&#'
ÿ

,+$*"-&,'0
ÿ

11G"H
ÿ

PBJQ
ÿ

G@@:H
ÿ

D
ÿ

M
ÿ

.#*ÿP#S9#%)#)QZ&%7,>#ÿ(#7,I%&)#:ÿ:&(#7*4+
ÿ

&%ÿ#Y1&*+
ÿ ÿ

<BOK<MB
ÿ

GJJIJ?@H
ÿ

<J<K<OO
ÿ

GJJI@P4H
ÿ

T9#(3*&%Iÿ(#)14*ÿ-,(ÿ*"#ÿ9#(&,:
ÿ ÿ

PMKNJ@Q
ÿ

J:I?Q=
ÿ

P<<K@@;Q
ÿ

JAI?JJ
ÿ

!,*34ÿ(#7,I%&)#:ÿ&%7,>#ÿ3%:ÿ#S9#%)#ÿ-,(
ÿ

*"#ÿ9#(&,:
ÿ

ÿ
<MJKMJO

ÿ
4I=@4

ÿ
<MLKL;@

ÿ
G:?1H

ÿ

U,-")ÿ(3"'#$0ÿ&'ÿ/&',*&-9ÿ&'-$*$0-
ÿ

14
ÿ

D
ÿ

G:I::4H
ÿ

D
ÿ

M
ÿ

!,*34ÿ#Y1&*+ 3*ÿ*"#ÿ#%:ÿ,-ÿ*"#ÿ+#3(
ÿ

ÿ
<K;LLKLL@

ÿ
JI@1JI1A?

ÿ
<K;A<KLJ<

ÿ
JIJ1@IA4Q

ÿ

U,-")ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'(,/$ÿ"'Oÿ$X+$'0$ÿ6,*ÿ-3$
ÿ

9$"*ÿ&0ÿ"--*&V8-"V)$ÿ-,[
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

Z$/V$*0ÿ,6ÿU3$ÿ\'&F$*0&-9ÿ,6ÿ>$<ÿ5,8-3
ÿ

]")$0
ÿ ÿ

<MJKMJO
ÿ

4I=@4
ÿ

<MLKL;@
ÿ

G:?1H
ÿ

ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

L66$(-ÿ,6ÿ(,**$(-&,'ÿ,6ÿ$**,*ÿ&'ÿ+*$F&,80ÿ9$"*I
ÿ

V$&'#ÿ"ÿ*$O8(-&,'ÿ&'ÿ*$-"&'$Oÿ08*+)80Iÿ"--*&V8-$O
ÿ

-,ÿ/$/V$*0ÿ,6ÿU3$ÿ\'&F$*0&-9ÿ,6ÿ>$<ÿ5,8-3
ÿ

]")$0
ÿ

QG"H
ÿ

D
ÿ

GPIA:JH
ÿ

D
ÿ

GPIA:JH
ÿ

L66$(-0ÿ,6ÿ(3"'#$0ÿ&'ÿ"((,8'-&'#ÿ+,)&(9
ÿ

QGVHG(H
ÿ

D
ÿ

G@IQ@QH
ÿ

D
ÿ

G@IQ@QH
ÿ

!"#ÿ$%&'#ÿ,-$-#+#)-ÿ&8ÿ*"$)6#,ÿ()ÿ#9.(-5ÿ,"&./0ÿ%#ÿ1#$0ÿ()ÿ*&)2.)*-(&)ÿ3(-"ÿ-"#ÿ$**&+4$)5()6ÿ)&-#,7
ÿ

ÿ
ÿ

Balance sheet Statement of changes in equity 12 / 13



C3)"ÿ-4,/ÿ)*3*#>#%*
6,(ÿ*"#ÿ+#3(ÿ#%:#:ÿ;<ÿ=#7#>?#(ÿ@AAB ÿ

ÿ
C,%),4&:3*#:

ÿ
F3(#%*

ÿ
ÿ ÿ

@AAB
ÿ

@AA=
ÿ

@AAB
ÿ

@AA=
ÿ

>,-$0
ÿ

GHAAA
ÿ

BCAAA
ÿ

GHAAA
ÿ

BCAAA
ÿ

C3)"ÿ-4,/)ÿ-(,>ÿ,9#(3*&%Iÿ37*&'&*&#)
ÿ

ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

D80-*")&"'ÿE,F$*'/$'-ÿE*"'-0ÿ*$($&F$O
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

;E5ÿ"'OÿT-3$*ÿWLL]RÿE*"'-0
ÿ

4=^J
ÿ

<NJKJJ@
ÿ

J41I?4=
ÿ

<NJKJJ@
ÿ

J1?IPP=
ÿ

K&#3$*ÿLO8("-&,'ÿN,"'ÿ!*,#*"/0
ÿ

4=^@
ÿ

LAKLB<
ÿ

??I:4=
ÿ

LAKLB<
ÿ

??I:4=
ÿ

5(3,)"*03&+0
ÿ

4=^1
ÿ

<AKJAL
ÿ

JAIJQJ
ÿ

<AKJAL
ÿ

JAIJQJ
ÿ

WLL]RÿR$0$"*(3
ÿ

4=^4
ÿ

JNKLBO
ÿ

P1I=@?
ÿ

JNKLBO
ÿ

P1I=@?
ÿ

D80-*")&"'ÿR$0$"*(3ÿ;,8'(&)ÿE*"'-0
ÿ

4=^:
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

W&0(,F$*9
ÿ

4=^:G"H
ÿ

@LK<BB
ÿ

@PIPP4
ÿ

@LK<BB
ÿ

@PIPP4
ÿ

N&'S"#$0
ÿ

4=^:GVH
ÿ

<@KJJ@
ÿ

J@IAP=
ÿ

<@KJJ@
ÿ

J@IAP=
ÿ

>$-<,*S0ÿ"'Oÿ;$'-*$0
ÿ

4=^:G(H
ÿ

OKJ@<
ÿ

:I?A=
ÿ

OKJ@<
ÿ

:I?A=
ÿ

T-3$*ÿD80-*")&"'ÿE,F$*'/$'-ÿE*"'-0
ÿ

@G#H
ÿ

<AOK;NB
ÿ

Q:I4=A
ÿ

<AOK;NB
ÿ

Q:I4=A
ÿ

5-"-$IÿN,(")ÿ"'Oÿ%,*$&#'ÿE,F$*'/$'-ÿE*"'-0
ÿ ÿ

<MK@<@
ÿ

@=I:41
ÿ

<MK<M;
ÿ

J@IAA@
ÿ

KL;5MKLN!ÿMÿ5-8O$'-ÿ!"9/$'-0
ÿ ÿ

@MKO<@
ÿ

@4I@@@
ÿ

@MKO<@
ÿ

@4I@@@
ÿ

T5ÿMÿKLN!ÿG'$-H
ÿ

@G#H
ÿ

<
ÿ

4J
ÿ

<
ÿ

4J
ÿ

R$($&+-0ÿ6*,/ÿ0-8O$'-ÿ6$$0ÿ"'Oÿ,-3$*
ÿ

(80-,/$*0
ÿ ÿ

N;;K<BB
ÿ

4A?IJQJ
ÿ

;J<KNOA
ÿ

1J@I==4
ÿ

.'F$0-/$'-ÿ&'(,/$ÿ*$($&F$O
ÿ ÿ

OLKBJ<
ÿ

1:IQQJ
ÿ

M@K;;B
ÿ

1:I4:Q
ÿ

.'-$*$0-ÿ*$($&F$O
ÿ

:
ÿ

<NKJ;L
ÿ

JAI=QJ
ÿ

@K;OL
ÿ

JIP=J
ÿ

!"9/$'-0ÿ-,ÿ08++)&$*0ÿ"'Oÿ$/+),9$$0
ÿ

G&'()80&F$ÿ,6ÿ#,,O0ÿ"'Oÿ0$*F&($0ÿ-"XH
ÿ ÿ

PLNJKNA<Q
ÿ

GPQAI=@PH
ÿ

PJOMKNJ@Q
ÿ

G?Q@I@JPH
ÿ

.'-$*$0-ÿ"'Oÿ,-3$*ÿ(,0-0ÿ,6ÿ6&'"'(&'#ÿ+"&O
ÿ ÿ

P@KN@;Q
ÿ

G@@=H
ÿ

P;K<ANQ
ÿ

M
ÿ

.'(,/$ÿ-"X$0ÿ*$68'OYG+"&OH
ÿ ÿ

P@BNQ
ÿ

1Q
ÿ

D
ÿ

M
ÿ

.#*ÿ73)"ÿ9(,'&:#:ÿ?+ ,9#(3*&%Iÿ37*&'&*&#)
ÿ

41
ÿ

JJK@JJ
ÿ

?JIJJA
ÿ

<<JK<AA
ÿ

4:I4J?
ÿ

C3)"ÿ-4,/)ÿ-(,>ÿ&%'#)*&%Iÿ37*&'&*&#)
ÿ

ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

!*,($$O0ÿ6*,/ÿ0")$ÿ,6ÿ+*,+$*-9Iÿ+)"'-ÿ"'O
ÿ

$78&+/$'-
ÿ ÿ

N<M
ÿ

JI=Q?
ÿ

NAO
ÿ

1QA
ÿ

!"9/$'-0ÿ6,*ÿ"F"&)"V)$ÿ6,*ÿ0")$ÿ"'Oÿ,-3$*
ÿ

6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-0
ÿ ÿ

P@AOKB<<Q
ÿ

GP:I@@=H
ÿ

P@ANKJBBQ
ÿ

G?:I:=:H
ÿ

!*,($$O0ÿ6*,/ÿ0")$ÿ,6ÿ"F"&)"V)$M6,*M0")$
ÿ

6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-0ÿ"'Oÿ,-3$*ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-0
ÿ ÿ

<MAKB@B
ÿ

J?QIAAA
ÿ

<NOKJAM
ÿ

JPJIA14
ÿ

!"9/$'-0ÿ6,*ÿ+*,+$*-9Iÿ+)"'-ÿ"'Oÿ$78&+/$'-
ÿ ÿ

PLOKLA@Q
ÿ

GJ:PI11@H
ÿ

PLOKAM<Q
ÿ

GJ4=I@P?H
ÿ

!"9/$'-0ÿ6,*ÿ&'-"'#&V)$ÿ"00$-0
ÿ ÿ

P<KJBAQ
ÿ

GJIQ?PH
ÿ

D
ÿ

G@A:H
ÿ

.#*ÿ73)"ÿ1)#:ÿ&%ÿ&%'#)*&%Iÿ37*&'&*&#)
ÿ

ÿP<N@K;NAQ
ÿ

G=4IP1QH
ÿ

P<O;KB@BQ
ÿ

G4AI=11H
ÿ

C3)"ÿ-4,/)ÿ-(,>ÿ-&%3%7&%Iÿ37*&'&*&#)
ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ ÿ

!*,($$O0ÿ6*,/ÿV,**,<&'#0
ÿ

ÿ
N<K<B@

ÿ
J?I@Q:

ÿ
N<K<B@

ÿ
M

ÿ

.#*ÿ73)"ÿ9(,'&:#:ÿ?+ -&%3%7&%Iÿ37*&'&*&#)
ÿ ÿ

N<K<B@
ÿ

J?I@Q:
ÿ

N<K<B@
ÿ

M
ÿ

.#*ÿ&%7(#3)#ZP:#7(#3)#Qÿ&%ÿ73)"ÿ3%:ÿ73)"
ÿ

#Y1&'34#%*)
ÿ ÿ

P<@KJJAQ
ÿ

@1I:==
ÿ

OKONO
ÿ

4I?P4
ÿ

;"03ÿ"'Oÿ("03ÿ$78&F")$'-0ÿ"-ÿ-3$ÿV$#&''&'#ÿ,6
ÿ

-3$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ9$"*
ÿ

ÿ
ONKO;L

ÿ
1AIQ?1

ÿ
<;KNLA

ÿ
PI?A=

ÿ

C3)"ÿ3%:ÿ73)"ÿ#Y1&'34#%*)ÿ3*ÿ*"#ÿ#%:ÿ,-ÿ*"#
ÿ

-&%3%7&34ÿ+#3(
ÿ

JP
ÿ

N<KMOL
ÿ

:4I:1Q
ÿ

<LKA;O
ÿ

J1I4QA
ÿ

!"#ÿ$%&'#ÿ*$,"ÿ8/&3ÿ,-$-#+#)-ÿ,"&./0ÿ%#ÿ1#$0ÿ()ÿ*&)2.)*-(&)ÿ3(-"ÿ-"#ÿ$**&+4$)5()6ÿ)&-#,7
ÿ

ÿ
ÿ

Notes to the financial statements

Note	 Contents of the notes to the financial statements 	 Page
1	 Summary of significant accounting policies	 16

	 Revenue
2	 Australian Government financial assistance including HECS-HELP and other Australian Government loan programs	 30
3	 State, Local and Foreign Government financial assistance	 32
4	 Fees and charges	 33
5	 Investment income	 33
6	 Royalties, trademarks and licences	 34
7	 Consultancy and contracts	 34
8	 Other revenue and income	 34
9	 Effect of correction of errors in previous year	 35

	 Expenses
10	 Employee related expenses	 35
11	 Depreciation and amortisation	 36
12	 Repairs and maintenance	 36
13	 Finance costs	 37
14	 Impairment of assets	 37
15	 Other expenses	 38
16	 Income Tax	 39
17	 Discontinued operation	 39

	 Assets
18	 Cash and cash equivalents	 40
19	 Receivables	 41
20	 Inventories	 44
21	 Non-current assets classified as held for sale	 44
22	 Available-for-sale financial assets	 45
23	 Other financial assets	 46
24	 Property, plant and equipment	 47
25	 Public Private Partnerships (PPP)	 52
26	 Intangible assets	 53

	 Liabilities
27	 Trade and other payables	 55
28	 Borrowings	 55
29	 Provisions	 58
30	 Current tax liabilities	 59
31	 Other liabilities	 60

	 Equity
32	 Statutory funds	 60
33	 Reserves and retained surplus	 61
34	 Minority interest	 62
35	 Key management personnel disclosures	 63
36	 Remuneration of auditors	 66
37	 Contingencies	 66
38	 Commitments	 67
39	 Subsidiaries	 68
40	 Investments in associates	 69
41	 Interests in joint ventures	 71
42	 Events occurring after the balance sheet date	 73
43	 Reconciliation of operating result after income tax to net cash flows from operating activities	 73
44	 Financial risk management	 74
45	 Superannuation commitments	 82
46	 Acquittal of Australian Government financial assistance	 89

Cash flow statement Notes to the financial statements 14 / 15



.,*#)ÿ*,ÿ*"#ÿ-&%3%7&34ÿ)*3*#>#%*)
;<ÿ=#7#>?#(ÿ@AAB ÿ

<
ÿ

01>>3(+ ,-ÿ)&I%&-&73%*ÿ377,1%*&%Iÿ9,4&7&#)
ÿ

U3$ÿ+*&'(&+")ÿ"((,8'-&'#ÿ+,)&(&$0ÿ"O,+-$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ+*$+"*"-&,'ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ*$+,*-ÿ"*$ÿ0$-ÿ,8-ÿV$),<^ÿÿU3$0$ÿ+,)&(&$0ÿ3"F$
ÿ

V$$'ÿ(,'0&0-$'-)9ÿ"++)&$Oÿ-,ÿ"))ÿ-3$ÿ9$"*0ÿ+*$0$'-$OIÿ8')$00ÿ,-3$*<&0$ÿ0-"-$O^ÿÿU3$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ*$+,*-ÿ&'()8O$0ÿ0$+"*"-$
ÿ

6&'"'(&")ÿ0-"-$/$'-0ÿ6,*ÿU3$ÿ\'&F$*0&-9ÿ,6ÿ>$<ÿ5,8-3ÿ]")$0ÿ"0ÿ"'ÿ&'O&F&O8")ÿ$'-&-9ÿ"'Oÿ-3$ÿ(,'0,)&O"-$Oÿ$'-&-9ÿG,*ÿCE*,8+CH
ÿ

(,'0&0-&'#ÿ,6ÿU3$ÿ\'&F$*0&-9ÿ,6ÿ>$<ÿ5,8-3ÿ]")$0ÿ"'Oÿ&-0ÿ(,'-*,))$Oÿ$'-&-&$0^
ÿ

P3Q
ÿ

U3)&)ÿ,-ÿ9(#93(3*&,%
ÿ

U3&0ÿ#$'$*")ÿ+8*+,0$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ*$+,*-ÿ3"0ÿV$$'ÿ+*$+"*$Oÿ,'ÿ"'ÿ"((*8")ÿV"0&0ÿ&'ÿ"((,*O"'($ÿ<&-3ÿ-3$ÿ*$78&*$/$'-0ÿ,6ÿ-3$
ÿ

:.%/(*ÿ;()$)*#ÿ$)0ÿ<.0(-ÿ<*-ÿ=>?@ÿ$)0ÿ:.%/(*ÿ;()$)*#ÿ$)0ÿ<.0(-ÿA#6./$-(&),ÿBCCDE D80-*")&"'ÿD((,8'-&'#ÿ5-"'O"*O0I
ÿ

,-3$*ÿ"8-3,*&-"-&F$ÿ+*,',8'($/$'-0ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿD80-*")&"'ÿD((,8'-&'#ÿ5-"'O"*O0ÿ2,"*OIÿD80-*")&"'ÿD((,8'-&'#ÿ.'-$*+*$-"-&,'0
ÿ

"'Oÿ-3$ ;()$)*($/ÿF-$-#+#)-ÿG.(0#/()#,ÿ8&1ÿ<.,-1$/($)ÿH(6"#1ÿI0.*$-(&)ÿ:1&'(0#1,ÿ8&1ÿ-"#ÿBCCJÿA#4&1-()6ÿ:#1(&0 &008$OÿV9
ÿ

-3$ÿW$+"*-/$'-ÿ,6ÿLO8("-&,'IÿL/+),9/$'-ÿ"'Oÿ],*S+)"($ÿR$)"-&,'0ÿGWLL]RHÿ"'Oÿ,-3$*ÿ5-"-$YD80-*")&"'ÿE,F$*'/$'-
ÿ

)$#&0)"-&F$ÿ*$78&*$/$'-0^
ÿ

K&+4/($)*#ÿ3(-"ÿL;AF,
ÿ

U3$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ0-"-$/$'-0ÿ"'Oÿ',-$0ÿ,6ÿU3$ÿ\'&F$*0&-9ÿ,6ÿ>$<ÿ5,8-3ÿ]")$0ÿ(,/+)9ÿ<&-3ÿD80-*")&"'ÿD((,8'-&'#ÿ5-"'O"*O0I
ÿ

0,/$ÿ,6ÿ<3&(3ÿ(,'-"&'ÿ*$78&*$/$'-0ÿ0+$(&6&(ÿ-,ÿ',-M6,*M+*,6&-ÿ$'-&-&$0ÿ-3"-ÿ"*$ÿ&'(,'0&0-$'-ÿ<&-3ÿ.%R5ÿ*$78&*$/$'-0^ÿU3$
ÿ

+"*$'-ÿ$'-&-9ÿ3"0ÿ$)$(-$Oÿ-,ÿ"++)9ÿ-3$ÿ*$)&$6ÿ+*,F&O$Oÿ-,ÿ+"*$'-ÿ$'-&-&$0ÿ&'ÿ*$0+$(-ÿ,6ÿ($*-"&'ÿO&0(),08*$ÿ*$78&*$/$'-0
ÿ

(,'-"&'$Oÿ&' <<FMÿ=BNÿA#/$-#0ÿ:$1-5ÿO(,*/&,.1#,7
ÿ

H(,-&1(*$/ÿ*&,-ÿ*&)'#)-(&)
ÿ

U3$0$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ0-"-$/$'-0ÿ3"F$ÿV$$'ÿ+*$+"*$Oÿ8'O$*ÿ-3$ÿ3&0-,*&(")ÿ(,0-ÿ(,'F$'-&,'Iÿ"0ÿ/,O&6&$OÿV9ÿ-3$ÿ*$F")8"-&,'ÿ,6
ÿ

"F"&)"V)$M6,*M0")$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-0Iÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-0ÿ"'Oÿ)&"V&)&-&$0ÿG&'()8O&'#ÿO$*&F"-&F$ÿ&'0-*8/$'-0Hÿ"-ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ-3*,8#3ÿ-3$
ÿ

&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-ÿ"'Oÿ($*-"&'ÿ()"00$0ÿ,6ÿ+*,+$*-9Iÿ+)"'-ÿ"'Oÿ$78&+/$'-^
ÿ

K1(-(*$/ÿ$**&.)-()6ÿ#,-(+$-#,
ÿ

U3$ÿ+*$+"*"-&,'ÿ,6ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ0-"-$/$'-0ÿ&'ÿ(,'6,*/&-9ÿ<&-3ÿD80-*")&"'ÿD((,8'-&'#ÿ5-"'O"*O0ÿ*$78&*$0ÿ-3$ÿ80$ÿ,6ÿ($*-"&'
ÿ

(*&-&(")ÿ"((,8'-&'#ÿ$0-&/"-$0^ÿÿ.-ÿ")0,ÿ*$78&*$0ÿ/"'"#$/$'-ÿ-,ÿ$X$*(&0$ÿ&-0ÿ`8O#$/$'-ÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ+*,($00ÿ,6ÿ"++)9&'#ÿ-3$
ÿ

E*,8+a0ÿ"((,8'-&'#ÿ+,)&(&$0^ÿU3$ÿ"*$"0ÿ&'F,)F&'#ÿ"ÿ3&#3$*ÿO$#*$$ÿ,6ÿ`8O#$/$'-ÿ,*ÿ(,/+)$X&-9Iÿ,*ÿ"*$"0ÿ<3$*$ÿ"008/+-&,'0
ÿ

"'Oÿ$0-&/"-$0ÿ"*$ÿ0&#'&6&("'-ÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ0-"-$/$'-0Iÿ"*$ÿO&0(),0$OÿV$),<[
ÿ

&^
ÿ

F.4#1$)).$-(&)ÿ/($%(/(-5ÿPÿO#8#11#0ÿG&'#1)+#)-ÿA#*#('$%/#,ÿ
ÿ

58+$*"''8"-&,'ÿ)&"V&)&-&$0ÿG"'Oÿ-3$ÿ(,**$0+,'O&'#ÿW$6$**$OÿE,F$*'/$'-ÿR$($&F"V)$0H^ÿ;$*-"&'ÿ58+$*"''8"-&,'
ÿ

)&"V&)&-&$0ÿ"*$ÿ$X+$(-$Oÿ-,ÿV$ÿ68))9ÿ68'O$OÿV9ÿ-3$ÿ%$O$*")ÿE,F$*'/$'-ÿ"0ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿWLL]Rÿ@AA4M@AA:
ÿ

6&'"'(&")ÿ0-"-$/$'-0ÿ"'Oÿ(,'6&*/$Oÿ&'ÿ(,**$0+,'O$'($ÿ6*,/ÿWLL]R^ÿU3$ÿ(")(8)"-&,'ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ)&"V&)&-9ÿ*$78&*$0ÿ-3$ÿ80$
ÿ

,6ÿF"*&,80ÿ"008/+-&,'0^ÿR$6$*ÿ-,ÿ',-$ÿ4: 6,*ÿO$-"&)0ÿ,6ÿF"*&,80ÿ"008/+-&,'0ÿ80$Oÿ&'ÿ(")(8)"-&'#ÿ-3$ÿ58+$*"''8"-&,'
ÿ

)&"V&)&-&$0ÿ"'Oÿ-3$ÿ(,**$0+,'O&'#ÿW$6$**$OÿE,F$*'/$'-ÿR$($&F"V)$0^
ÿ

&&^
ÿ

I+4/&5+#)-ÿ$)0ÿ*&)-1$*-&1ÿ1#/$-#0ÿ41&'(,(&),ÿ$)0ÿ&%/(6$-(&),
ÿ

U3$ÿE*,8+ÿ/"O$ÿ+*,F&0&,'0ÿ&'ÿ*$0+$(-ÿ,6ÿ(,'-*&V8-&,'0ÿ6,*ÿ&-0ÿ$/+),9$$0ÿ-,ÿ\'&58+$*ÿ"'Oÿ"OO&-&,'")ÿ,'M(,0-0ÿ,'
ÿ

+"9/$'-0ÿ/"O$ÿ-,ÿ(,'-*"(-,*0ÿ-3"-ÿ<$*$ÿ$'#"#$OÿV9ÿ-3$ÿ\'&F$*0&-9^ÿ
ÿ

ÿ

U3$ÿE*,8+ÿ"00$00$Oÿ-3$ÿ"++*,+*&"-$'$00ÿ,6ÿ-3$0$ÿ+*,F&0&,'0ÿ"-ÿ$"(3ÿ*$+,*-&'#ÿO"-$ÿV9ÿ$F")8"-&'#ÿ(,'O&-&,'0
ÿ

0+$(&6&(ÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+^ÿU3$ÿ(")(8)"-&,'ÿ,6ÿ-3$0$ÿ+*,F&0&,'0ÿ*$78&*$Oÿ-3$ÿ80$ÿ,6ÿF"*&,80ÿ"008/+-&,'0Iÿ08(3ÿ"0
ÿ

$X+$(-$Oÿ*"-$ÿ,6ÿ*$-8*'ÿ,'ÿ-3$ÿ68'O0ÿ"'Oÿ08+$*"''8"-&,'ÿ$'-&-)$/$'-0Iÿ"'Oÿ&0ÿV"0$Oÿ,'ÿ"ÿ*"'#$ÿ,6ÿ+,00&V)$
ÿ

,8-(,/$0^
ÿ

P?Q
ÿ

F(&%7&94#)ÿ,-ÿ7,%),4&:3*&,%
ÿ

U3$ÿ(,'0,)&O"-$Oÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ0-"-$/$'-0ÿ&'(,*+,*"-$ÿ-3$ÿ"00$-0ÿ"'Oÿ)&"V&)&-&$0ÿ,6ÿ"))ÿ$'-&-&$0ÿ(,'-*,))$OÿV9ÿU3$ÿ\'&F$*0&-9ÿ,6
ÿ

>$<ÿ5,8-3ÿ]")$0ÿGCC+"*$'-ÿ$'-&-9CCHÿ"0ÿ"-ÿ1JÿW$($/V$*ÿ@AA?ÿ"'Oÿ-3$ÿ*$08)-0ÿ,6ÿ"))ÿ(,'-*,))$Oÿ$'-&-&$0ÿ6,*ÿ-3$ÿ9$"*ÿ-3$'
ÿ

$'O$O^ÿ
ÿ

;,'-*,))$Oÿ$'-&-&$0ÿ"*$ÿ"))ÿ-3,0$ÿ$'-&-&$0ÿG&'()8O&'#ÿ0+$(&")ÿ+8*+,0$ÿ$'-&-&$0Hÿ,F$*ÿ<3&(3ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ÿ3"0ÿ-3$ÿ+,<$*ÿ-,ÿ#,F$*'
ÿ

-3$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"'Oÿ,+$*"-&'#ÿ+,)&(&$0Iÿ#$'$*"))9ÿ"((,/+"'9&'#ÿ"ÿ03"*$3,)O&'#ÿ,6ÿ/,*$ÿ-3"'ÿ,'$ÿ3")6ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿF,-&'#ÿ*&#3-0^ÿU3$
ÿ

$X&0-$'($ÿ"'Oÿ$66$(-ÿ,6ÿ+,-$'-&")ÿF,-&'#ÿ*&#3-0ÿ-3"-ÿ"*$ÿ(8**$'-)9ÿ$X$*(&0"V)$ÿ,*ÿ(,'F$*-&V)$ÿ"*$ÿ(,'0&O$*$Oÿ<3$'ÿ"00$00&'#
ÿ

<3$-3$*ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ÿ(,'-*,)0ÿ"',-3$*ÿ$'-&-9^
ÿ

;,'-*,))$Oÿ$'-&-&$0ÿ"*$ÿ68))9ÿ(,'0,)&O"-$Oÿ6*,/ÿ-3$ÿO"-$ÿ,'ÿ<3&(3ÿ(,'-*,)ÿ&0ÿ-*"'06$**$Oÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+^ÿU3$9ÿ"*$ÿO$M
ÿ

(,'0,)&O"-$Oÿ6*,/ÿ-3$ÿO"-$ÿ-3"-ÿ(,'-*,)ÿ($"0$0^
ÿ

U3$ÿ+8*(3"0$ÿ/$-3,Oÿ,6ÿ"((,8'-&'#ÿ&0ÿ80$Oÿ-,ÿ"((,8'-ÿ6,*ÿ-3$ÿ"(78&0&-&,'ÿ,6ÿ(,'-*,))$Oÿ$'-&-&$0ÿV9ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ G*$6$*ÿ-,ÿ',-$
ÿ

JGSHH^
ÿ

ÿ
ÿ

.,*#)ÿ*,ÿ*"#ÿ-&%3%7&34ÿ)*3*#>#%*)
;<ÿ=#7#>?#(ÿ@AAB

G(,'-&'8$OH ÿ

<
ÿ

01>>3(+ ,-ÿ)&I%&-&73%*ÿ377,1%*&%Iÿ9,4&7&#) P7,%*&%1#:Q
ÿ

P?Q
ÿ

F(&%7&94#)ÿ,-ÿ7,%),4&:3*&,% P7,%*&%1#:Q
ÿ

]3$*$ÿ"'ÿ"OO&-&,'")ÿ,<'$*03&+ÿ&'-$*$0-ÿ&0ÿ"(78&*$Oÿ&'ÿ"'ÿ$'-&-9ÿ-3"-ÿ&0ÿ")*$"O9ÿ(,'-*,))$OIÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ÿ3"0ÿ$)$(-$Oÿ-,ÿ"O,+-
ÿ

-3$ÿb/,O&6&$Oÿ+"*$'-ÿ$'-&-9cÿ"++*,"(3^ÿU3&0ÿ"++*,"(3ÿ&'F,)F$0ÿ-*$"-&'#ÿ-3$ÿO&66$*$'($ÿV$-<$$'ÿ(,'0&O$*"-&,'ÿ+"&Oÿ"'Oÿ-3$
ÿ

V,,SÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿ"00$-0ÿ"(78&*$Oÿ"0ÿ#,,O<&))ÿG<3$*$ÿ-3$ÿ(,'0&O$*"-&,'ÿ$X($$O0ÿ-3$ÿV,,SÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ"00$-0ÿ"(78&*$OHÿ,*ÿ"0ÿ"
ÿ

O&0(,8'-ÿ*$(,*O$Oÿ-3*,8#3ÿ-3$ÿ+*,6&-ÿ"'Oÿ),00ÿ"((,8'-ÿG<3$*$ÿ-3$ÿ(,'0&O$*"-&,'ÿ&0ÿ)$00ÿ-3"'ÿ-3$ÿV,,SÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ"00$-0
ÿ

"(78&*$OH^ÿ
ÿ

D))ÿ&'-$*M$'-&-9ÿ-*"'0"(-&,'0IÿV")"'($0ÿ"'Oÿ8'*$")&0$Oÿ#"&'0ÿ,'ÿ-*"'0"(-&,'0ÿV$-<$$'ÿE*,8+ÿ$'-&-&$0ÿ"*$ÿ$)&/&'"-$Oÿ&'ÿ68))ÿ,'
ÿ

(,'0,)&O"-&,'^ÿ\'*$")&0$Oÿ),00$0ÿ"*$ÿ")0,ÿ$)&/&'"-$Oÿ8')$00ÿ-3$ÿ-*"'0"(-&,'ÿ+*,F&O$0ÿ$F&O$'($ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ&/+"&*/$'-ÿ,6ÿ-3$
ÿ

"00$-ÿ-*"'06$**$O^ÿD((,8'-&'#ÿ+,)&(&$0ÿ,6ÿ(,'-*,))$Oÿ$'-&-&$0ÿ3"F$ÿV$$'ÿ(3"'#$Oÿ<3$*$ÿ'$($00"*9ÿ-,ÿ$'08*$ÿ(,'0&0-$'(9
ÿ

<&-3ÿ-3$ÿ+,)&(&$0ÿ"O,+-$OÿV9ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+^
ÿ

Z&',*&-9ÿ&'-$*$0-0ÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ*$08)-0ÿ"'Oÿ-3$ÿ$78&-9ÿ,6ÿ(,'-*,))$Oÿ$'-&-&$0ÿ"*$ÿ03,<'ÿ0$+"*"-$)9ÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ(,'0,)&O"-$Oÿ&'(,/$
ÿ

0-"-$/$'-ÿ"'OÿV")"'($ÿ03$$-ÿ*$0+$(-&F$)9^
ÿ

P7Q
ÿ

5)),7&3*#)
ÿ

D00,(&"-$0ÿ"*$ÿ"))ÿ$'-&-&$0ÿ,F$*ÿ<3&(3ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ÿ3"0ÿ0&#'&6&("'-ÿ&'6)8$'($ÿV8-ÿ',-ÿ(,'-*,)Iÿ#$'$*"))9ÿ"((,/+"'9&'#ÿ"
ÿ

03"*$3,)O&'#ÿ,6ÿV$-<$$'ÿ@Adÿ"'Oÿ:Adÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿF,-&'#ÿ*&#3-0^ÿ.'F$0-/$'-0ÿ&'ÿ"00,(&"-$0ÿ"*$ÿ"((,8'-$Oÿ6,*ÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ+"*$'-
ÿ

$'-&-9ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ0-"-$/$'-0ÿ80&'#ÿ-3$ÿ(,0-ÿ/$-3,Oÿ"'Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ(,'0,)&O"-$Oÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ0-"-$/$'-0ÿ80&'#ÿ-3$ÿ$78&-9ÿ/$-3,Oÿ,6
ÿ

"((,8'-&'#Iÿ"6-$*ÿ&'&-&"))9ÿV$&'#ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ"-ÿ(,0-^ÿU3$ÿE*,8+C0ÿ&'F$0-/$'-ÿ&'ÿ"00,(&"-$0ÿ&'()8O$0ÿ#,,O<&))ÿG'$-ÿ,6ÿ"'9
ÿ

"((8/8)"-$Oÿ&/+"&*/$'-ÿ),00Hÿ&O$'-&6&$Oÿ,'ÿ"(78&0&-&,'^
ÿ

U3$ÿE*,8+C0ÿ03"*$ÿ,6ÿ&-0ÿ"00,(&"-$0Cÿ+,0-ÿ"(78&0&-&,'ÿ+*,6&-0ÿ,*ÿ),00$0ÿ&0ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-Iÿ"'Oÿ&-0ÿ03"*$
ÿ

,6ÿ+,0-ÿ"(78&0&-&,'ÿ/,F$/$'-0ÿ&'ÿ*$0$*F$0ÿ&0ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ*$0$*F$0^ÿU3$ÿ(8/8)"-&F$ÿ+,0-ÿ"(78&0&-&,'ÿ/,F$/$'-0ÿ"*$
ÿ

"O`80-$Oÿ"#"&'0-ÿ-3$ÿ("**9&'#ÿ"/,8'-ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ&'F$0-/$'-^ÿW&F&O$'O0ÿ*$($&F"V)$ÿ6*,/ÿ"00,(&"-$0ÿ"*$ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ+"*$'-
ÿ

$'-&-9C0ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-Iÿ<3&)$ÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ(,'0,)&O"-$Oÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ0-"-$/$'-0ÿ-3$9ÿ*$O8($ÿ-3$ÿ("**9&'#ÿ"/,8'-ÿ,6ÿ-3$
ÿ

&'F$0-/$'-^
ÿ

]3$'ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+C0ÿ03"*$ÿ,6ÿ),00$0ÿ&'ÿ"'ÿ"00,(&"-$ÿ$78")0ÿ,*ÿ$X($$O0ÿ&-0ÿ&'-$*$0-ÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ"00,(&"-$Iÿ&'()8O&'#ÿ"'9ÿ,-3$*
ÿ

8'0$(8*$Oÿ*$($&F"V)$0Iÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ÿO,$0ÿ',-ÿ*$(,#'&0$ÿ68*-3$*ÿ),00$0Iÿ8')$00ÿ&-ÿ3"0ÿ&'(8**$Oÿ,V)&#"-&,'0ÿ,*ÿ/"O$ÿ+"9/$'-0
ÿ

,'ÿV$3")6ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ"00,(&"-$^
ÿ

\'*$")&0$Oÿ#"&'0ÿ,'ÿ-*"'0"(-&,'0ÿV$-<$$'ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ÿ"'Oÿ&-0ÿ"00,(&"-$0ÿ"*$ÿ$)&/&'"-$Oÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ$X-$'-ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+C0ÿ&'-$*$0-
ÿ

&'ÿ-3$ÿ"00,(&"-$0^ÿ\'*$")&0$Oÿ),00$0ÿ"*$ÿ")0,ÿ$)&/&'"-$Oÿ8')$00ÿ-3$ÿ-*"'0"(-&,'ÿ+*,F&O$0ÿ$F&O$'($ÿ,6ÿ"'ÿ&/+"&*/$'-ÿ,6ÿ-3$
ÿ

"00$-ÿ-*"'06$**$O^ÿD((,8'-&'#ÿ+,)&(&$0ÿ,6ÿ"00,(&"-$0ÿ3"F$ÿV$$'ÿ(3"'#$Oÿ<3$*$ÿ'$($00"*9ÿ-,ÿ$'08*$ÿ(,'0&0-$'(9ÿ<&-3ÿ-3$
ÿ

+,)&(&$0ÿ"O,+-$OÿV9ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+^
ÿ

P:Q
ÿ

[,&%*ÿ'#%*1(#)ÿ3%:ÿC,,9#(3*&'#ÿ8#)#3(7"ÿC#%*(#)
ÿ

U3$ÿE*,8+ÿ3"0ÿ&'-$*$0-0ÿ&'ÿ;,,+$*"-&F$ÿR$0$"*(3ÿ;$'-*$0ÿG;R;Hÿ<3&(3ÿ*$78&*$0ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ÿ-,ÿ(,'-*&V8-$ÿ&'ÿ("03ÿ"'Oÿ&'M
ÿ

S&'OÿV"0$Oÿ,'ÿ-3$ÿ+*,+,*-&,'ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ&'-$*$0-ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ÿ3"0ÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ;R;^
ÿ

;,'-*&V8-&,'0ÿ&'ÿ("03ÿ"'Oÿ&'MS&'Oÿ"*$ÿ$X+$'0$Oÿ"'Oÿ&'()8O$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-^ÿÿU3$ÿE*,8+C0ÿ03"*$ÿ,6ÿ(,'-*&V8-&,'0
ÿ

"*$ÿ',-ÿ&'()8O$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿV")"'($ÿ03$$-^ÿÿ.'ÿ-3$ÿ$F$'-ÿ-3"-ÿ"ÿ;R;C0ÿ*$0$"*(3ÿ*$08)-0ÿ&'ÿ"ÿ/,F$ÿ-,ÿ(,//$*(&")&0"-&,'Iÿ"
ÿ

0$+"*"-$ÿ)$#")ÿ$'-&-9ÿ&0ÿ$0-"V)&03$Oÿ"'Oÿ-3$ÿE*,8+C0ÿ03"*$ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ'$<ÿ$'-&-9ÿ&0ÿ-*$"-$Oÿ"0ÿ"'ÿ"F"&)"V)$M6,*M0")$ÿ6&'"'(&")
ÿ

"00$-Iÿ`,&'-ÿF$'-8*$Iÿ"00,(&"-$ÿ,*ÿ(,'-*,))$Oÿ$'-&-9ÿ"0ÿ"++*,+*&"-$^
ÿ

P#Q
ÿ

F1?4&7ÿF(&'3*#ÿF3(*%#()"&9)ÿPFFFQÿ
ÿ

U3$ÿE*,8+ÿ$'-$*0ÿ&'-,ÿ!!!ÿ<&-3ÿ-3$ÿ+*&F"-$ÿ0$(-,*ÿ&'ÿ*$)"-&,'ÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ(,'0-*8(-&,'ÿ"'Oÿ,+$*"-&,'ÿ,6ÿ'$<ÿ0-8O$'-
ÿ

"((,//,O"-&,'^ÿL"(3ÿ&'O&F&O8")ÿ!!!ÿ&0ÿ"((,8'-$Oÿ6,*ÿ&'ÿ"((,*O"'($ÿ<&-3ÿ&-0ÿ08V0-"'($ÿ"'Oÿ$(,',/&(ÿ*$")&-9Iÿ"'Oÿ',-
ÿ

/$*$)9ÿ&-0ÿ)$#")ÿ6,*/^ÿU3$ÿE*,8+ÿ*$(,#'&0$0ÿ"'ÿ"00$-ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ'$<ÿV8&)O&'#0ÿ-3"-ÿ&0ÿ-3$ÿ08V`$(-ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ!!!ÿ,')9ÿ<3$'ÿ&-
ÿ

O$-$*/&'$0ÿ&-ÿ3"0ÿ-3$ÿ/"`,*&-9ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ*&0S0ÿ"'OÿV$'$6&-0ÿ&'ÿ*$)"-&,'ÿ-,ÿ-3,0$ÿV8&)O&'#0^ÿN"'Oÿ)$"0$Oÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ+*&F"-$ÿ0$(-,*ÿ"'O
ÿ

"'9ÿ,-3$*ÿ0$*F&($ÿ$)$/$'-0ÿ-3"-ÿ"*$ÿ+"*-ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ!!!IÿV8-ÿ"*$ÿ',-ÿ-3$ÿV8&)O&'#0Iÿ"*$ÿ"((,8'-$Oÿ6,*ÿ0$+"*"-$)9ÿ&'ÿ"((,*O"'($
ÿ

<&-3ÿ-3$ÿ"++)&("V)$ÿD80-*")&"'ÿD((,8'-&'#ÿ5-"'O"*O0^ÿ
ÿ

ÿ
ÿ

Notes to the financial statements 16 / 17



.,*#)ÿ*,ÿ*"#ÿ-&%3%7&34ÿ)*3*#>#%*)
;<ÿ=#7#>?#(ÿ@AAB

G(,'-&'8$OH ÿ

<
ÿ

01>>3(+ ,-ÿ)&I%&-&73%*ÿ377,1%*&%Iÿ9,4&7&#) P7,%*&%1#:Q
ÿ

P-Q
ÿ

6,(#&I%ÿ71((#%7+ *(3%)43*&,%
ÿ

Q(R
ÿ

;.)*-(&)$/ÿ$)0ÿ41#,#)-$-(&)ÿ*.11#)*5
ÿ

.-$/0ÿ&'()8O$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ0-"-$/$'-0ÿ,6ÿ$"(3ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+C0ÿ$'-&-&$0ÿ"*$ÿ/$"08*$Oÿ80&'#ÿ-3$ÿ(8**$'(9ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ+*&/"*9
ÿ

$(,',/&(ÿ$'F&*,'/$'-ÿ&'ÿ<3&(3ÿ-3$ÿ$'-&-9ÿ,+$*"-$0ÿGC-3$ÿ68'(-&,'")ÿ(8**$'(9CH^ÿU3$ÿ(,'0,)&O"-$Oÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ0-"-$/$'-0ÿ"*$
ÿ

+*$0$'-$Oÿ&'ÿD80-*")&"'ÿO,))"*0Iÿ<3&(3ÿ&0ÿU3$ÿ\'&F$*0&-9ÿ,6ÿ>$<ÿ5,8-3ÿ]")$0Cÿ68'(-&,'")ÿ"'Oÿ+*$0$'-"-&,'ÿ(8**$'(9^
ÿ

Q((R
ÿ

!1$),$*-(&),ÿ$)0ÿ%$/$)*#,
ÿ

%,*$&#'ÿ(8**$'(9ÿ-*"'0"(-&,'0ÿ"*$ÿ-*"'0)"-$Oÿ&'-,ÿ-3$ÿ68'(-&,'")ÿ(8**$'(9ÿ80&'#ÿ-3$ÿ$X(3"'#$ÿ*"-$0ÿ+*$F"&)&'#ÿ"-ÿ-3$ÿO"-$0
ÿ

,6ÿ-3$ÿ-*"'0"(-&,'0^ÿ%,*$&#'ÿ$X(3"'#$ÿ#"&'0ÿ"'Oÿ),00$0ÿ*$08)-&'#ÿ6*,/ÿ-3$ÿ0$--)$/$'-ÿ,6ÿ08(3ÿ-*"'0"(-&,'0ÿ"'Oÿ6*,/ÿ-3$
ÿ

-*"'0)"-&,'ÿ"-ÿ9$"*M$'Oÿ$X(3"'#$ÿ*"-$0ÿ,6ÿ/,'$-"*9ÿ"00$-0ÿ"'Oÿ)&"V&)&-&$0ÿO$',/&'"-$Oÿ&'ÿ6,*$&#'ÿ(8**$'(&$0ÿ"*$ÿ*$(,#'&0$O
ÿ

&'ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-^
ÿ

U*"'0)"-&,'ÿO&66$*$'($0ÿ,'ÿ','M/,'$-"*9ÿ&-$/0Iÿ08(3ÿ"0ÿ$78&-&$0ÿ3$)Oÿ"-ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ-3*,8#3ÿ+*,6&-ÿ,*ÿ),00Iÿ"*$ÿ*$+,*-$Oÿ"0
ÿ

+"*-ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ#"&'ÿ,*ÿ),00^ÿU*"'0)"-&,'ÿO&66$*$'($0ÿ,'ÿ','M/,'$-"*9ÿ&-$/0Iÿ08(3ÿ"0ÿ$78&-&$0ÿ()"00&6&$Oÿ"0ÿ"F"&)"V)$M
ÿ

6,*M0")$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-0Iÿ"*$ÿ&'()8O$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ*$0$*F$ÿ&'ÿ$78&-9^
ÿ

Q(((R
ÿ

G1&.4ÿ*&+4$)(#,
ÿ

U3$ÿ*$08)-0ÿ"'Oÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ+,0&-&,'ÿ,6ÿ"))ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ÿ$'-&-&$0ÿG','$ÿ,6ÿ<3&(3ÿ3"0ÿ-3$ÿ(8**$'(9ÿ,6ÿ"ÿ39+$*&'6)"-&,'"*9ÿ$(,',/9H
ÿ

-3"-ÿ3"F$ÿ"ÿ68'(-&,'")ÿ(8**$'(9ÿO&66$*$'-ÿ6*,/ÿ-3$ÿ+*$0$'-"-&,'ÿ(8**$'(9ÿ"*$ÿ-*"'0)"-$Oÿ&'-,ÿ-3$ÿ+*$0$'-"-&,'ÿ(8**$'(9ÿ"0
ÿ

6,)),<0[
ÿ

· "00$-0ÿ"'Oÿ)&"V&)&-&$0ÿ6,*ÿ$"(3ÿV")"'($ÿ03$$-ÿ+*$0$'-$Oÿ"*$ÿ-*"'0)"-$Oÿ"-ÿ-3$ÿ(),0&'#ÿ*"-$ÿ"-ÿ-3$ÿO"-$ÿ,6ÿ-3"-ÿV")"'($
ÿ

03$$-e
ÿ

· &'(,/$ÿ"'Oÿ$X+$'0$0ÿ6,*ÿ$"(3ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-ÿ"*$ÿ-*"'0)"-$Oÿ"-ÿ"F$*"#$ÿ$X(3"'#$ÿ*"-$0ÿG8')$00ÿ-3&0ÿ&0ÿ',-ÿ"
ÿ

*$"0,'"V)$ÿ"++*,X&/"-&,'ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ(8/8)"-&F$ÿ$66$(-ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ*"-$0ÿ+*$F"&)&'#ÿ,'ÿ-3$ÿ-*"'0"(-&,'ÿO"-$0Iÿ&'ÿ<3&(3ÿ("0$
ÿ

&'(,/$ÿ"'Oÿ$X+$'0$0ÿ"*$ÿ-*"'0)"-$Oÿ"-ÿ-3$ÿO"-$0ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ-*"'0"(-&,'0Heÿ"'O
ÿ

· "))ÿ*$08)-&'#ÿ$X(3"'#$ÿO&66$*$'($0ÿ"*$ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ"0ÿ"ÿ0$+"*"-$ÿ(,/+,'$'-ÿ,6ÿ$78&-9^
ÿ

T'ÿ(,'0,)&O"-&,'Iÿ$X(3"'#$ÿO&66$*$'($0ÿ"*&0&'#ÿ6*,/ÿ-3$ÿ-*"'0)"-&,'ÿ,6ÿ"'9ÿ'$-ÿ&'F$0-/$'-ÿ&'ÿ6,*$&#'ÿ$'-&-&$0Iÿ"'Oÿ,6
ÿ

V,**,<&'#0ÿ"*$ÿ-"S$'ÿ-,ÿ03"*$3,)O$*0Cÿ$78&-9^ÿ]3$'ÿ"ÿ6,*$&#'ÿ,+$*"-&,'ÿ&0ÿ0,)Oÿ,*ÿV,**,<&'#0ÿ*$+"&OIÿ"ÿ+*,+,*-&,'"-$ÿ03"*$
ÿ

,6ÿ08(3ÿ$X(3"'#$ÿO&66$*$'($0ÿ"*$ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-ÿ"0ÿ+"*-ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ#"&'ÿ,*ÿ),00ÿ,'ÿ0")$^
ÿ

E,,O<&))ÿ"'Oÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ"O`80-/$'-0ÿ"*&0&'#ÿ,'ÿ-3$ÿ"(78&0&-&,'ÿ,6ÿ6,*$&#'ÿ$'-&-&$0ÿ"*$ÿ-*$"-$Oÿ"0ÿ"00$-0ÿ"'Oÿ)&"V&)&-&$0ÿ,6ÿ-3$
ÿ

6,*$&#'ÿ$'-&-&$0ÿ"'Oÿ-*"'0)"-$Oÿ"-ÿ-3$ÿ(),0&'#ÿ*"-$^
ÿ

PIQ
ÿ

8#'#%1#ÿ(#7,I%&*&,%
ÿ

R$F$'8$ÿ&0ÿ/$"08*$Oÿ"-ÿ-3$ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ(,'0&O$*"-&,'ÿ*$($&F$Oÿ,*ÿ*$($&F"V)$^ÿD/,8'-0ÿO&0(),0$Oÿ"0ÿ*$F$'8$ÿ"*$ÿ'$-
ÿ

,6ÿ*$-8*'0IÿO8-&$0ÿ"'Oÿ-"X$0ÿ+"&O^ÿR$F$'8$ÿ&0ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ6,*ÿ-3$ÿ6,)),<&'#ÿ/"`,*ÿV80&'$00ÿ"(-&F&-&$0[
ÿ

Q(R
ÿ

S4#1$-()6ÿ1#'#).#
ÿ

%&'"'(&")ÿ"00&0-"'($ÿ+*,F&O$OÿV9ÿ-3$ÿE,F$*'/$'-ÿ8'O$*ÿ-3$ÿK&#3$*ÿLO8("-&,'ÿ%8'O&'#ÿD(-ÿJQPPÿ&0ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ9$"*
ÿ

&'ÿ<3&(3ÿ&-ÿ&0ÿ*$($&F$O^ÿ%LLMKLN!ÿGÿK&#3$*ÿLO8("-&,'ÿN,"'ÿ!*,#*"/Hÿ&0ÿ")0,ÿ+*,F&O$Oÿ8'O$*ÿ-3$ÿK&#3$*ÿLO8("-&,'ÿ%8'O&'#
ÿ

D(-ÿJQPPÿ"'Oÿ&0ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ9$"*ÿ&'ÿ<3&(3ÿ&-ÿ"++)&$0^ÿÿE*"'-ÿ*$F$'8$ÿ',-ÿ*$($&F$Oÿ8'O$*ÿ-3$ÿK&#3$*ÿLO8("-&,'
ÿ

%8'O&'#ÿD(-ÿJQPPÿ&0ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ9$"*ÿ-,ÿ<3&(3ÿ&-ÿ"++)&$0^
ÿ

Q((R
ÿ

F-.0#)-ÿ8##,
ÿ

5-8O$'-ÿ6$$0ÿ"*$ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ"0ÿO$V-,*0ÿ6,)),<&'#ÿ-3$ÿ($'080ÿO"-$ÿ6,*ÿ$"(3ÿ0$00&,'^ÿÿU3$ÿ68))ÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿ0-8O$'-ÿ6$$0ÿ+"9"V)$
ÿ

&0ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ"0ÿ*$F$'8$ÿ<&-3ÿ"'9ÿ6$$ÿ<"&F$*0ÿ,*ÿO&0(,8'-0ÿV$&'#ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ"0ÿ"'ÿ$X+$'0$ÿ<&-3&'ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-^
ÿ

Q(((R
ÿ

F$/#ÿ&8ÿ6&&0,ÿ$)0ÿ,#1'(*#,
ÿ

5")$0ÿ*$F$'8$ÿ(,/+*&0$0ÿ*$F$'8$ÿ$"*'$OÿG'$-ÿ,6ÿ*$-8*'0IÿO&0(,8'-0ÿ"'Oÿ")),<"'($0Hÿ6*,/ÿ-3$ÿ08++)9ÿ,6ÿ+*,O8(-0ÿ-,ÿ$'-&-&$0
ÿ

,8-0&O$ÿ-3$ÿ(,'0,)&O"-$Oÿ$'-&-9^ÿÿ5")$0ÿ*$F$'8$ÿ&0ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ<3$'ÿ(,'-*,)ÿ"'Oÿ-&-)$ÿ,6ÿ#,,O0ÿ+"00$0ÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ(80-,/$*^
ÿ

Q('R
ÿ

;##,ÿ$)0ÿ*"$16#,ÿ8&1ÿ,#1'(*#,
ÿ

R$F$'8$ÿ6*,/ÿ0$*F&($0ÿ*$'O$*$Oÿ&0ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ+$*&,Oÿ&'ÿ<3&(3ÿ-3$ÿ0$*F&($ÿ&0ÿ+*,F&O$OIÿ3"F&'#ÿ*$#"*Oÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ0-"#$ÿ,6
ÿ

(,/+)$-&,'ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ0$*F&($^
ÿ

Q'R
ÿ

L)'#,-+#)-ÿ()*&+#
ÿ

.'-$*$0-ÿ&'(,/$ÿ&0ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ"0ÿ&-ÿ"((*8$0^ÿÿ
ÿ

ÿ
ÿ

.,*#)ÿ*,ÿ*"#ÿ-&%3%7&34ÿ)*3*#>#%*)
;<ÿ=#7#>?#(ÿ@AAB

G(,'-&'8$OH ÿ

<
ÿ

01>>3(+ ,-ÿ)&I%&-&73%*ÿ377,1%*&%Iÿ9,4&7&#) P7,%*&%1#:Q
ÿ

PIQ
ÿ

8#'#%1#ÿ(#7,I%&*&,% P7,%*&%1#:Q
ÿ

Q'(R
ÿ

S-"#1ÿ1#'#).#
ÿ

R$+*$0$'-0ÿ/&0($))"'$,80ÿ&'(,/$ÿ"'Oÿ,-3$*ÿ#*"'-ÿ&'(,/$ÿ',-ÿO$*&F$Oÿ6*,/ÿ(,*$ÿV80&'$00ÿ"'Oÿ&0ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ<3$'ÿ&-ÿ&0
ÿ

$"*'$O^
ÿ

P"Q
ÿ

\,'#(%>#%*ÿI(3%*)
ÿ
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U3$ÿE*,8+ÿ"00$00$0ÿ"-ÿ$"(3ÿV")"'($ÿO"-$ÿ<3$-3$*ÿ-3$*$ÿ&0ÿ,V`$(-&F$ÿ$F&O$'($ÿ-3"-ÿ"ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-ÿ,*ÿ#*,8+ÿ,6ÿ6&'"'(&")
ÿ

"00$-0ÿ&0ÿ&/+"&*$O^ÿ.'ÿ-3$ÿ("0$ÿ,6ÿ$78&-9ÿ0$(8*&-&$0ÿ()"00&6&$Oÿ"0ÿ"F"&)"V)$M6,*M0")$Iÿ"ÿ0&#'&6&("'-ÿ,*ÿ+*,),'#$OÿO$()&'$ÿ&'ÿ-3$
ÿ

6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿ"ÿ0$(8*&-9ÿV$),<ÿ&-0ÿ(,0-ÿ&0ÿ(,'0&O$*$Oÿ&'ÿO$-$*/&'&'#ÿ<3$-3$*ÿ-3$ÿ0$(8*&-9ÿ&0ÿ&/+"&*$O^ÿ.6ÿ"'9ÿ08(3ÿ$F&O$'($
ÿ

$X&0-0ÿ6,*ÿ"F"&)"V)$M6,*M0")$ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-0Iÿ-3$ÿ(8/8)"-&F$ÿ),00Iÿ/$"08*$Oÿ"0ÿ-3$ÿO&66$*$'($ÿV$-<$$'ÿ-3$ÿ"(78&0&-&,'ÿ(,0-
ÿ

"'Oÿ-3$ÿ(8**$'-ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$Iÿ)$00ÿ"'9ÿ&/+"&*/$'-ÿ),00ÿ,'ÿ-3"-ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-ÿ+*$F&,80)9ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-
ÿ

&0ÿ*$/,F$Oÿ6*,/ÿ$78&-9ÿ"'Oÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-^ÿ./+"&*/$'-ÿ),00$0ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-
ÿ

,'ÿ$78&-9ÿ&'0-*8/$'-0ÿ"*$ÿ',-ÿ*$F$*0$Oÿ-3*,8#3ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-IÿV8-ÿ"*$ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ$78&-9ÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ"F"&)"V)$M6,*M0")$
ÿ

&'F$0-/$'-0ÿ*$F")8"-&,'ÿ*$0$*F$^
ÿ

ÿ
ÿ
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.,*#)ÿ*,ÿ*"#ÿ-&%3%7&34ÿ)*3*#>#%*)
;<ÿ=#7#>?#(ÿ@AAB

G(,'-&'8$OH ÿ

<
ÿ

01>>3(+ ,-ÿ)&I%&-&73%*ÿ377,1%*&%Iÿ9,4&7&#) P7,%*&%1#:Q
ÿ

PYQ
ÿ

=#(&'3*&'#)
ÿ

W$*&F"-&F$0ÿ"*$ÿ&'&-&"))9ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ"-ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ,'ÿ-3$ÿO"-$ÿ"ÿO$*&F"-&F$ÿ(,'-*"(-ÿ&0ÿ$'-$*$Oÿ&'-,Iÿ"'Oÿ"*$ÿ08V0$78$'-)9
ÿ

*$/$"08*$Oÿ-,ÿ-3$&*ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$^ÿÿ
ÿ

Q(R
ÿ

;$(1ÿ'$/.#ÿ"#06#
ÿ

U3$ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ&'0-*8/$'-0ÿ-*"O$Oÿ&'ÿ"(-&F$ÿ/"*S$-0ÿG08(3ÿ"0ÿ+8V)&()9ÿ-*"O$OÿO$*&F"-&F$0Iÿ"'Oÿ-*"O&'#ÿ"'O
ÿ

"F"&)"V)$M6,*M0")$ÿ0$(8*&-&$0Hÿ&0ÿV"0$Oÿ,'ÿ78,-$Oÿ/"*S$-ÿ+*&($0ÿ"-ÿ-3$ÿV")"'($ÿ03$$-ÿO"-$^
ÿ

;3"'#$0ÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿO$*&F"-&F$0ÿ-3"-ÿ"*$ÿO$0&#'"-$Oÿ"'Oÿ78")&69ÿ"0ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ3$O#$0ÿ"*$ÿ*$(,*O$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$
ÿ

0-"-$/$'-Iÿ-,#$-3$*ÿ<&-3ÿ"'9ÿ(3"'#$0ÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ3$O#$Oÿ"00$-ÿ,*ÿ)&"V&)&-9ÿ-3"-ÿ"*$ÿ"--*&V8-"V)$ÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ3$O#$O
ÿ

*&0S^
ÿ

Q((R
ÿ

O#1('$-('#,ÿ-"$-ÿ0&ÿ)&-ÿ9.$/(85ÿ8&1ÿ"#06#ÿ$**&.)-()6
ÿ

;$*-"&'ÿO$*&F"-&F$ÿ&'0-*8/$'-0ÿO,ÿ',-ÿ78")&69ÿ6,*ÿ3$O#$ÿ"((,8'-&'#^ÿ;3"'#$0ÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿ"'9ÿO$*&F"-&F$ÿ&'0-*8/$'-
ÿ

-3"-ÿO,$0ÿ',-ÿ78")&69ÿ6,*ÿ3$O#$ÿ"((,8'-&'#ÿ"*$ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&//$O&"-$)9ÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-^
ÿ

P(Q
ÿ

63&(ÿ'341#ÿ#)*&>3*&,%
ÿ

U3$ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-0ÿ"'Oÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ)&"V&)&-&$0ÿ/80-ÿV$ÿ$0-&/"-$Oÿ6,*ÿ*$(,#'&-&,'ÿ"'Oÿ/$"08*$/$'-ÿ,*ÿ6,*
ÿ

O&0(),08*$ÿ+8*+,0$0^
ÿ

U3$ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ&'0-*8/$'-0ÿ-*"O$Oÿ&'ÿ"(-&F$ÿ/"*S$-0ÿG08(3ÿ"0ÿ+8V)&()9ÿ-*"O$OÿO$*&F"-&F$0Iÿ"'Oÿ-*"O&'#ÿ"'O
ÿ

"F"&)"V)$M6,*M0")$ÿ0$(8*&-&$0Hÿ&0ÿV"0$Oÿ,'ÿ78,-$Oÿ/"*S$-ÿ+*&($0ÿ"-ÿ-3$ÿV")"'($ÿ03$$-ÿO"-$^ÿU3$ÿ78,-$Oÿ/"*S$-ÿ+*&($ÿ80$O
ÿ

6,*ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ"00$-0ÿ3$)OÿV9ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ÿ&0ÿ-3$ÿ(8**$'-ÿV&Oÿ+*&($^ÿU3$ÿ"++*,+*&"-$ÿ78,-$Oÿ/"*S$-ÿ+*&($ÿ6,*ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ)&"V&)&-&$0ÿ&0
ÿ

-3$ÿ(8**$'-ÿ"0Sÿ+*&($^
ÿ

U3$ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ&'0-*8/$'-0ÿ-3"-ÿ"*$ÿ',-ÿ-*"O$Oÿ&'ÿ"'ÿ"(-&F$ÿ/"*S$-ÿG6,*ÿ$X"/+)$Iÿ,F$*M-3$M(,8'-$*ÿO$*&F"-&F$0Hÿ&0
ÿ

O$-$*/&'$Oÿ80&'#ÿF")8"-&,'ÿ-$(3'&78$0^ÿU3$ÿE*,8+ÿ80$0ÿ"ÿF"*&$-9ÿ,6ÿ/$-3,O0ÿ"'Oÿ/"S$0ÿ"008/+-&,'0ÿ-3"-ÿ"*$ÿV"0$Oÿ,'
ÿ

/"*S$-ÿ(,'O&-&,'0ÿ$X&0-&'#ÿ"-ÿ$"(3ÿV")"'($ÿO"-$^ÿf8,-$Oÿ/"*S$-ÿ+*&($0ÿ,*ÿO$")$*ÿ78,-$0ÿ6,*ÿ0&/&)"*ÿ&'0-*8/$'-0ÿ"*$ÿ80$O
ÿ

6,*ÿ),'#M-$*/ÿO$V-ÿ&'0-*8/$'-0ÿ3$)O^ÿT-3$*ÿ-$(3'&78$0Iÿ08(3ÿ"0ÿ$0-&/"-$OÿO&0(,8'-$Oÿ("03ÿ6),<0Iÿ"*$ÿ80$Oÿ-,ÿO$-$*/&'$
ÿ

6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ6,*ÿ-3$ÿ*$/"&'&'#ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ&'0-*8/$'-0^ÿ
ÿ

U3$ÿ',/&'")ÿF")8$ÿ)$00ÿ$0-&/"-$Oÿ(*$O&-ÿ"O`80-/$'-0ÿ,6ÿ-*"O$ÿ*$($&F"V)$0ÿ"'Oÿ+"9"V)$0ÿ"*$ÿ"008/$Oÿ-,ÿ"++*,X&/"-$ÿ-3$&*
ÿ

6"&*ÿF")8$0^ÿU3$ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$ÿ,6ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ)&"V&)&-&$0ÿ6,*ÿO&0(),08*$ÿ+8*+,0$0ÿ&0ÿ$0-&/"-$OÿV9ÿO&0(,8'-&'#ÿ-3$ÿ68-8*$ÿ(,'-*"(-8")
ÿ

("03ÿ6),<0ÿ"-ÿ-3$ÿ(8**$'-ÿ/"*S$-ÿ&'-$*$0-ÿ*"-$ÿ-3"-ÿ&0ÿ"F"&)"V)$ÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ÿ6,*ÿ0&/&)"*ÿ6&'"'(&")ÿ&'0-*8/$'-0^
ÿ

P)Q
ÿ

F(,9#(*+Kÿ943%*ÿ3%:ÿ#Y1&9>#%*
ÿ

N"'Oÿ"'OÿV8&)O&'#0Iÿ&'()8O&'#ÿ0-8O$'-ÿ"((,//,O"-&,'ÿ"'Oÿ*$0&O$'-&")ÿ+*,+$*-&$0Iÿ<,*S0ÿ,6ÿ"*-ÿ"'Oÿ*"*$ÿV,,S0ÿ"*$ÿ03,<'ÿ"-
ÿ

6"&*ÿF")8$IÿV"0$Oÿ,'ÿ"''8")ÿF")8"-&,'0ÿV9ÿ$X-$*'")ÿ&'O$+$'O$'-ÿF")8$*0Iÿ)$00ÿ08V0$78$'-ÿO$+*$(&"-&,'ÿ6,*ÿV8&)O&'#0^
ÿ

;"**9&'#ÿF")8$0ÿ"*$ÿ*$F&$<$Oÿ,'ÿ"ÿ*$#8)"*ÿV"0&0ÿ-,ÿ$'08*$ÿ-3"-ÿ-3$ÿ("**9&'#ÿF")8$ÿO,$0ÿ',-ÿO&66$*ÿ/"-$*&"))9ÿ6*,/ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$^
ÿ

D'9ÿ"((8/8)"-$OÿO$+*$(&"-&,'ÿ"-ÿ-3$ÿO"-$ÿ,6ÿ*$F")8"-&,'ÿ&0ÿ$)&/&'"-$Oÿ"#"&'0-ÿ-3$ÿ#*,00ÿ("**9&'#ÿ"/,8'-ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ"00$-ÿ0,
ÿ

-3"-ÿ-3$ÿ("**9&'#ÿ"/,8'-ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ"00$-ÿ"6-$*ÿ*$F")8"-&,'ÿ$78")0ÿ&-0ÿ*$F")8$Oÿ"/,8'-^ÿD))ÿ,-3$*ÿ+*,+$*-9Iÿ+)"'-ÿ"'Oÿ$78&+/$'-
ÿ

&0ÿ0-"-$Oÿ"-ÿ3&0-,*&(")ÿ(,0-ÿ)$00ÿO$+*$(&"-&,'Iÿ<3&(3ÿ&0ÿ"008/$Oÿ-,ÿ"++*,X&/"-$ÿ-3$&*ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$0^ÿK&0-,*&(")ÿ(,0-ÿ&'()8O$0
ÿ

$X+$'O&-8*$ÿ-3"-ÿ&0ÿO&*$(-)9ÿ"--*&V8-"V)$ÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ"(78&0&-&,'ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ&-$/0^
ÿ

58V0$78$'-ÿ(,0-0ÿ"*$ÿ&'()8O$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ"00$-C0ÿ("**9&'#ÿ"/,8'-ÿ,*ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ"0ÿ"ÿ0$+"*"-$ÿ"00$-Iÿ"0ÿ"++*,+*&"-$Iÿ,')9
ÿ

<3$'ÿ&-ÿ&0ÿ+*,V"V)$ÿ-3"-ÿ68-8*$ÿ$(,',/&(ÿV$'$6&-0ÿ"00,(&"-$Oÿ<&-3ÿ-3$ÿ&-$/ÿ<&))ÿ6),<ÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ÿ"'Oÿ-3$ÿ(,0-ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ&-$/
ÿ

("'ÿV$ÿ/$"08*$Oÿ*$)&"V)9^ÿD))ÿ,-3$*ÿ*$+"&*0ÿ"'Oÿ/"&'-$'"'($ÿ"*$ÿ(3"*#$Oÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-ÿO8*&'#ÿ-3$ÿ6&'"'(&")
ÿ

+$*&,Oÿ&'ÿ<3&(3ÿ-3$9ÿ"*$ÿ&'(8**$O^
ÿ

.'(*$"0$0ÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ("**9&'#ÿ"/,8'-0ÿ"*&0&'#ÿ,'ÿ*$F")8"-&,'ÿ,6ÿ)"'Oÿ"'OÿV8&)O&'#0ÿ"*$ÿ(*$O&-$Oÿ-,ÿ+*,+$*-9Iÿ+)"'-ÿ"'O
ÿ

$78&+/$'-ÿ*$F")8"-&,'ÿ*$0$*F$0ÿ&'ÿ03"*$3,)O$*0Cÿ$78&-9^ÿU,ÿ-3$ÿ$X-$'-ÿ-3"-ÿ-3$ÿ&'(*$"0$ÿ*$F$*0$0ÿ"ÿO$(*$"0$ÿ+*$F&,80)9
ÿ

*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ+*,6&-ÿ,*ÿ),00Iÿ-3$ÿ&'(*$"0$ÿ&0ÿ6&*0-ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ+*,6&-ÿ,*ÿ),00^ÿW$(*$"0$0ÿ-3"-ÿ*$F$*0$ÿ+*$F&,80
ÿ

&'(*$"0$0ÿ&'ÿ-3"-ÿ()"00ÿ,6ÿ"00$-0ÿ"*$ÿ6&*0-ÿ(3"*#$Oÿ"#"&'0-ÿ*$F")8"-&,'ÿ*$0$*F$0ÿO&*$(-)9ÿ&'ÿ$78&-9Iÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ$X-$'-ÿ,6ÿ-3$
ÿ

*$/"&'&'#ÿ*$0$*F$ÿ"--*&V8-"V)$ÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ"00$-ÿ()"00eÿ"))ÿ,-3$*ÿO$(*$"0$0ÿ"*$ÿ(3"*#$Oÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-^
ÿ

N"'OIÿ<,*S0ÿ,6ÿ"*-ÿ"'Oÿ*"*$ÿV,,S0ÿ"*$ÿ',-ÿO$+*$(&"-$OIÿ"0ÿ-3$9ÿ"*$ÿ03,<'ÿ"-ÿ6"&*ÿF")8$^ÿW$+*$(&"-&,'ÿ,'ÿ-3$ÿ,-3$*ÿ()"00$0
ÿ

,6ÿ"00$-0ÿ&0ÿ(")(8)"-$Oÿ80&'#ÿ-3$ÿ0-*"&#3-ÿ)&'$ÿ/$-3,Oÿ-,ÿ")),("-$ÿ-3$&*ÿ(,0-ÿ,*ÿ*$F")8$Oÿ"/,8'-0Iÿ'$-ÿ,6ÿ-3$&*ÿ*$0&O8")
ÿ

F")8$0Iÿ,F$*ÿ-3$&*ÿ$0-&/"-$Oÿ80$68)ÿ)&F$0Iÿ"0ÿ6,)),<0[
ÿ

ÿ
ÿ
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G(,'-&'8$OH ÿ

<
ÿ

01>>3(+ ,-ÿ)&I%&-&73%*ÿ377,1%*&%Iÿ9,4&7&#) P7,%*&%1#:Q
ÿ

P)Q
ÿ

F(,9#(*+Kÿ943%*ÿ3%:ÿ#Y1&9>#%* P7,%*&%1#:Q
ÿ

5))#*
ÿ

C,%*(,44#:ÿR%*&*&#)
ÿ

F3(#%*
ÿ

Mÿ28&)O&'#0
ÿ

J^==dÿ-,ÿ:d
ÿ

J^==dÿ-,ÿ:d
ÿ

Mÿ;,/+8-$*ÿ$78&+/$'-
ÿ

@Adÿ-,ÿ11d
ÿ

11^1d
ÿ

MÿZ,-,*ÿF$3&()$0
ÿ

@Adÿ-,ÿ1Ad
ÿ

J@d
ÿ

MÿT-3$*ÿ$78&+/$'-
ÿ

JAd
ÿ

JAd
ÿ

MÿN&V*"*9ÿ3,)O&'#0
ÿ

@Ad
ÿ

@Ad
ÿ

MÿN$"0$3,)Oÿ&/+*,F$/$'-0
ÿ

J^==dÿ-,ÿJAAd
ÿ

J^==dÿ-,ÿJAAd
ÿ

U3$ÿ"00$-0Cÿ*$0&O8")ÿF")8$0ÿ"'Oÿ80$68)ÿ)&F$0ÿ"*$ÿ*$F&$<$OIÿ"'Oÿ"O`80-$Oÿ&6ÿ"++*,+*&"-$Iÿ"-ÿ$"(3ÿV")"'($ÿ03$$-ÿO"-$^
ÿ

D'ÿ"00$-C0ÿ("**9&'#ÿ"/,8'-ÿ&0ÿ<*&--$'ÿO,<'ÿ&//$O&"-$)9ÿ-,ÿ&-0ÿ*$(,F$*"V)$ÿ"/,8'-ÿ&6ÿ-3$ÿ"00$-C0ÿ("**9&'#ÿ"/,8'-ÿ&0ÿ#*$"-$*
ÿ

-3"'ÿ&-0ÿ$0-&/"-$Oÿ*$(,F$*"V)$ÿ"/,8'- G',-$ÿJG)HH^
ÿ

E"&'0ÿ"'Oÿ),00$0ÿ,'ÿO&0+,0")0ÿ"*$ÿO$-$*/&'$OÿV9ÿ(,/+"*&'#ÿ+*,($$O0ÿ<&-3ÿ-3$ÿ("**9&'#ÿ"/,8'-^ÿU3$ÿ'$-ÿ#"&'0ÿ"'Oÿ),00$0
ÿ

6*,/ÿ-3$ÿ0")$ÿ,6ÿ"00$-0ÿ',-ÿ,*&#&'"))9ÿ+8*(3"0$Oÿ6,*ÿ-3$ÿ&'-$'-&,'ÿ,6ÿ*$0")$Iÿ"*$ÿ&'()8O$Oÿ"0ÿ"'ÿ&'(,/$ÿ,*ÿ$X+$'0$ÿ"-ÿ-3$
ÿ

O"-$ÿ<3$'ÿ-3$ÿ(,'O&-&,'0ÿ-,ÿ"ÿ(,'-*"(-ÿ,6ÿ0")$ÿ3"F$ÿV$$'ÿ0"-&06&$OIÿ"'Oÿ-3$ÿ(,'-*"(-ÿV$(,/$0ÿ8'(,'O&-&,'")^ÿ]3$'
ÿ

*$F")8$Oÿ"00$-0ÿ"*$ÿ0,)OIÿ&-ÿ&0ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+C0ÿ+,)&(9ÿ-,ÿ-*"'06$*ÿ-3$ÿ"/,8'-0ÿ&'()8O$Oÿ&'ÿ+*,+$*-9Iÿ+)"'-ÿ"'Oÿ$78&+/$'-
ÿ

*$0$*F$0ÿ&'ÿ*$0+$(-ÿ,6ÿ-3,0$ÿ"00$-0ÿ-,ÿ*$-"&'$Oÿ$"*'&'#0^
ÿ

P*Q
ÿ

E%*3%I&?4#ÿ3))#*)
ÿ

Q(Rÿÿ
ÿ

T(*#)*#,
ÿ

N&($'($0ÿ"*$ÿ("**&$Oÿ"-ÿ(,0-ÿ)$00ÿ"((8/8)"-$Oÿ"/,*-&0"-&,'ÿ"'Oÿ&/+"&*/$'-ÿ),00$0^ÿÿN&($'($0ÿ-3"-ÿ3"F$ÿ"ÿ6&'&-$ÿ)&6$ÿ"*$
ÿ

"/,*-&0$Oÿ80&'#ÿ-3$ÿ0-*"&#3-ÿ)&'$ÿ/$-3,Oÿ-,ÿ")),("-$ÿ-3$ÿ(,0-ÿ,F$*ÿ-3$&*ÿ$0-&/"-$Oÿ80$68)ÿ)&F$0^ÿÿN&($'($0ÿ-3"-ÿ3"F$ÿ"'
ÿ

&'6&'&-$ÿ80$68)ÿ)&6$ÿ"*$ÿ',-ÿ"/,*-&0$Oÿ"'Oÿ"*$ÿ"00$00$Oÿ6,*ÿ&/+"&*/$'-ÿ"''8"))9ÿ"'Oÿ<3$'$F$*ÿ-3$*$ÿ&0ÿ"'ÿ&'O&("-&,'ÿ-3"-ÿ-3$
ÿ

)&($'($0ÿ/"9ÿV$ÿ&/+"&*$O^
ÿ

Q((Rÿÿ
ÿ

K&+4.-#1ÿ,&8-3$1#
ÿ

;,/+8-$*ÿ0,6-<"*$ÿ&0ÿ0-"-$Oÿ"-ÿ3&0-,*&(")ÿ(,0-ÿ)$00ÿ"/,*-&0"-&,'^ÿK&0-,*&(")ÿ(,0-ÿ&'()8O$0ÿ$X+$'O&-8*$ÿ-3"-ÿ&0ÿO&*$(-)9
ÿ

"--*&V8-"V)$ÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ"(78&0&-&,'ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ&-$/0^
ÿ

58V0$78$'-ÿ(,0-0ÿ"*$ÿ&'()8O$Oÿ&'ÿ-3$ÿ"00$-C0ÿ("**9&'#ÿ"/,8'-ÿ,*ÿ*$(,#'&0$Oÿ"0ÿ"ÿ0$+"*"-$ÿ"00$-Iÿ"0ÿ"++*,+*&"-$Iÿ,')9
ÿ

<3$'ÿ&-ÿ&0ÿ+*,V"V)$ÿ-3"-ÿ68-8*$ÿ$(,',/&(ÿV$'$6&-0ÿ"00,(&"-$Oÿ<&-3ÿ-3$ÿ&-$/ÿ<&))ÿ6),<ÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+ÿ"'Oÿ-3$ÿ(,0-ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿ&-$/
ÿ

("'ÿV$ÿ/$"08*$Oÿ*$)&"V)9^ÿD))ÿ,-3$*ÿ*$+"&*0ÿ"'Oÿ/"&'-$'"'($ÿ"*$ÿ(3"*#$Oÿ-,ÿ-3$ÿ&'(,/$ÿ0-"-$/$'-ÿO8*&'#ÿ-3$ÿ6&'"'(&")
ÿ

+$*&,Oÿ&'ÿ<3&(3ÿ-3$9ÿ"*$ÿ&'(8**$O^
ÿ

;,/+8-$*ÿ0,6-<"*$ÿ&0ÿ"/,*-&0$Oÿ80&'#ÿ-3$ÿ0-*"&#3-ÿ)&'$ÿ/$-3,Oÿ-,ÿ")),("-$ÿ&-0ÿ(,0-Iÿ'$-ÿ,6ÿ"'9ÿ*$0&O8")ÿF")8$Iÿ,F$*ÿ&-0
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.,*#)ÿ*,ÿ*"#ÿ-&%3%7&34ÿ)*3*#>#%*)
;<ÿ=#7#>?#(ÿ@AAB

G(,'-&'8$OH ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ

*$0+,'0&V&)&-9ÿ6,*ÿ+)"''&'#IÿO&*$(-&'#ÿ"'Oÿ(,'-*,))&'#ÿ-3$ÿ"(-&F&-&$0ÿ,6ÿ-3$ÿE*,8+IÿO&*$(-)9ÿ,*ÿ&'O&*$(-)9^
ÿ

P37Q
ÿ

0*3%:3(:)ÿ3%:ÿ&%*#(9(#*3*&,%)ÿ3994&73?4#ÿ*,ÿ-&%3%7&34ÿ(#9,(*&%Iÿ9#(&,:)ÿ43*#(ÿ*"3%ÿ*",)#ÿ#%:&%Iÿ;<ÿ=#7#>?#(
ÿ

@AAB
ÿ

C,>9&4#:ÿ0*3%:3(:)
ÿ

0*3%:3(:
ÿ

.3>#
ÿ

5994&73*&,%ÿ=3*#
ÿ

DD52ÿJ
ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ

,'ÿ,*ÿ"6-$*ÿJÿh8)9ÿ@AA?
ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ

D''8")ÿ*$+,*-&'#ÿ+$*&,O0ÿV$#&''&'#
ÿ

,'ÿ,*ÿ"6-$*ÿJÿh8)9ÿ@AA?
ÿ

DD52ÿJJP
ÿ

R$F$'8$ÿGJH
ÿ

D''8")ÿ*$+,*-&'#ÿ+$*&,O0ÿV$#&''&'#
ÿ

,'ÿ,*ÿ"6-$*ÿJÿh8)9ÿ@AA?
ÿ

DD52ÿJJQ
ÿ

L/+),9$$ÿ2$'$6&-0ÿGJH
ÿ

D''8")ÿ*$+,*-&'#ÿ+$*&,O0ÿV$#&''&'#
ÿ

,'ÿ,*ÿ"6-$*ÿJÿh8)9ÿ@AA?
ÿ

DD52ÿJ@A
ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿD''8")ÿ*$+,*-&'#ÿ+$*&,O0ÿV$#&''&'#

ÿ

,'ÿ,*ÿ"6-$*ÿJÿh8)9ÿ@AA?
ÿ

DD52ÿJ@J
ÿ
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ÿ

R"-$0ÿGJH
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ

GJH
ÿD''8")ÿ*$+,*-&'#ÿ+$*&,O0ÿV$#&''&'#

ÿ

,'ÿ,*ÿ"6-$*ÿJÿh8)9ÿ@AA?
ÿ

DD52ÿJ@P
ÿ

.'F$0-/$'-ÿ&'ÿD00,(&"-$0ÿGJH
ÿ

D''8")ÿ*$+,*-&'#ÿ+$*&,O0ÿV$#&''&'#
ÿ

,'ÿ,*ÿ"6-$*ÿJÿh8)9ÿ@AA?
ÿ

DD52ÿJ@Q
ÿ

%&'"'(&")ÿR$+,*-&'#ÿ&'ÿK9+$*&'6)"-&,'"*9
ÿ

L(,',/&$0ÿGJH
ÿD''8")ÿ*$+,*-&'#ÿ+$*&,O0ÿV$#&''&'#

ÿ

,'ÿ,*ÿ"6-$*ÿJÿh8)9ÿ@AA?
ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ

L"*'&'#0ÿ+$*ÿ53"*$ÿGJH
ÿ
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ÿ

,'ÿ,*ÿ"6-$*ÿJÿh8)9ÿ@AA?
ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ
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ÿ

./+"&*/$'-ÿ,6ÿD00$-0ÿGJH
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Investment and investment performance (University only)

(i) Return for 
12 months to 
31/12/2007

(ii)Treasury
Corporation Facility 

Performance
for 12 months to 

31/12/2007

(i) Return for 
12 months to 
31/12/2006

(ii)Treasury Corporation 
Facility Performance

for 12 months to 31/12/2006
% % % %

Pool L External 7.08 5.06 13.70 13.19
Pool S UNSW 5.90 6.55 6.30 5.96

i)

ii)

University account payment performance (University only)

Total Accounts paid on time Total amount paid

Target (1)

 %
Actual (1)

 % $' 000 $' 000
2006
January - March 70% 66% 69,807                 114,424                              
April - June 70% 72% 95,434                 153,178                              
July - September 70% 56% 81,735                 135,129                              
October - December 70% 62% 79,785                 141,399                              

2007
January - March 70% 54% 106,196 149,720
April - June 70% 55% 76,838 142,562
July - September 70% 64% 121,564 173,925
October - December 70% 58% 100,400 152,938

(1) The % is based on the number of transactions processed and not on monetary terms.

The returns in the table reflect the change in market value of investments between the beginning and end of the 
year and, therefore, include unrealised capital gains and losses.

For the Pool L comparison with the Treasury Corporation facility performance, a weighted average of the 
performances of the medium and long term facilities is employed to reflect the strategic asset allocation of Pool 
L.

During 2007 the University’s investments were divided between the following three investment Pools:

Pool L, a long-term investment fund with an investment horizon of more than two years, the components of which were 
managed during the year by eight external fund managers;

Pool S, the University’s short-term working capital with an investment horizon of less than two years managed internally 
by UNSW’s Investment Services; and

Pool P consist of principally student accommodation and residential properties (95%) and significant venture initiatives 
(5%).  The student accommodation and residential properties are held for strategic purpose and managed by the 
University's Strategic Property Group. These properties are not classified as investment properties under current 
accounting standards.

In accordance with the Annual Reports (Statutory Bodies) Act 1984  and its Regulation 2005, the performance of Pools L 
and S are measured in table below against Treasury Corporation Facilities.  It is not appropriate for Pool P’s performance 
to be benchmarked in this way as it is a project fund and its investment criteria and horizon differ markedly from any of 
the Treasury Corporation facilities.

Fund Manager

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

For the year ended 31 December 2007

Budget Actual Budget
 2007  2007  2008 
 $'000  $'000  $'000 

Revenue from continuing operations
Australian Government financial assistance
     Australian Government grants 390,642    387,298 414,114
     HECS-HELP – Australian Government payments 74,490          76,014 98,000     
     FEE-HELP 20,436          20,374 20,000     
State and Local Government financial assistance 10,970          13,825 12,000     
HECS-HELP – Student payments 28,968          26,512 27,000     
Fees and charges 227,559    238,745 277,687
Investment income 23,519          65,423 26,156     
Royalties, trademarks and licences 1,206              2,492 591          
Consultancy and contracts 56,438          58,597 59,000     
Other revenue 26,325          23,378 40,444     

Total revenue from continuing operations    860,553    912,658    974,992 

Gains on disposal of assets              -           275              -
Other income        4,447        8,494        6,218 

Total income from continuing operations before Deferred 
Government Superannuation Contribution    865,000    921,427    981,210 

Deferred Government Superannuation Contributions              -    (50,669)              -

Total revenue and income from continuing operations    865,000    870,758    981,210 

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on costs    485,000    515,668    547,482 
Depreciation and amortisation      46,000      43,439      40,051 
Repairs and maintenance      25,253      22,916      21,564 
Finance costs              -        3,104        3,198 
Impairment of assets        2,000        1,663        1,092 
Losses on disposal of assets              -        2,770             82 
Other expenses (a)    295,747    343,090    335,905 

Total expenses from continuing operations before Deferred 
Employee Benefits for Superannuation    854,000    932,650    949,374 

Deferred Employee Benefits for Superannuation              -    (50,669)              -

Total expenses from continuing operations    854,000    881,981    949,374 

Operating result for the year     11,000   (11,223)      31,836 

(a) The 'Other expenses' for 2007 includes UNSW Asia's liabilities and closure costs amounting 
     to $47,598,000 which was not budgeted.
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Areas of Identified Deficiency Management Response

1 Employment Related Legacy Issues

2 Complexity of Group Structure

3 Governance and Processes over Major Asset 
Transactions

4 Grossing Up Impairment of Assets

5 Co-operative Research Centre for Eye Research and 
Technology (CRCERT)

Management will consider recommendations of 
independent report and resolution is expected in 2008.

The following information summarises major issues raised by the NSW Auditor-General in the Statutory Audit Report for the year 
ended 31 December 2007 and the responses provided by University management.

Management will continue the extensive review in 2008 
to ascertain the extent of necessary actions and 
payments to resolve these matters.

Summary of significant items raised by the New South Wales Auditor-General in the Statutory Audit 
Report  for the year ended 31 December 2007 (University only) 

UNSW is continuing to review the appropriateness of 
the existing group structure with a view to address the 
governance and controls; reporting and issues 
resolution on a timely basis.

Management is continuing its review of governance, 
controls and processes that support University 
decisions to enter into and manage significant asset 
transactions to ensure they are effective and 
consistently applied across the group.

Management will undertake further investigations into 
disclosing investments at cost rather than only at 
carrying values net of impairments.

Areas of Identified Deficiency Action

1 Status of Investment of UNSW Asia

2 Sundry and Student Debtors

3 Property Plant & Equipment Business Cycle Controls

Land Appendix (University only)

Land Value Land Value

Land Use
2007
$'000

2006
$'000

T 255,405 298,238                      
A Student accommodation 22,610 27,129                        
LR Leased to residential tenants 18,060 16,120                        
LC Leased to commercial tenant 31,695 4,648                          

327,770 346,135                      

Summary of significant items raised by the New South Wales Auditor-General in Management 
Letter (University only) 

Management have kept the Audit Office up to date on 
events surrounding UNSW Asia as they have transpired.
On 24 December 2007, UNSW Asia was placed in 
liquidation. (Refer note 17 - Discontinued operation, in the 
financial statement for further information).

Management have been reviewing the detail credit 
balance for student and sundry debtors on an ongoing 
basis. UNSW has commenced a project in 2008 to 
resolve this matter. All credit balances are reclassified as 
sundry creditors on a monthly basis. 

The total value of land owned or occupied is higher than the land value recognised within the categories "Land" and
"Student Accommodation and Residential Properties" in the Balance Sheet. The value of the Land disclosed in the balance 
sheet has been adjusted for impairment.

Teaching, Research and other University purposes

In accordance with Section 41B 1(d) of the Public Finance and Audit Act , below is the unaudited Land Appendix to the 
Financial Statements of the University of New South Wales for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Management has carried out a full valuation of property, 
plant and equipment as at 31 December 2007.

The following information summarises major issues raised by the NSW Auditor-General in the Management Letter for the 
year ended 31 December 2006 and the action provided by University management.
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